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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSPageCondensed Consolidated Balance Sheets1Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations2Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income3Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows4Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'
Equity5Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements71. Business Overview72. Basis of Presentation73. Revenue84. Earnings Per Sharel05.
Acquisition, Goodwill and Intangible Assets116. Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Expenses117. Accrued Compensation and Benefits128. Debt129. Derivatives1410.
Income Taxes1511. Employee Benefit Plans1612. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)1613. Stock-Based Compensation1714. Fair Value
Measurements1815. Commitments and Contingencies19Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONCONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEETS(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)December 31,2024March 31, 2024A (Unaudited)ASSETSCurrent assets:Cash and cash
equivalents$453,539A $554,257A Accounts receivable, net2,223,712A 2,047,342A Prepaid expenses and other current assets169,142A 137,310A Total current
assets2,846,393A 2,738,909A Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation177,267A 188,279A Operating lease right-of-use

assets179,941A 174,345A Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization580,062A 601,043A Goodwill2,404,941A 2,343,789A Deferred tax

assets311,966A 227,171A Other long-term assets320,419A 290,152A Total assets$6,820,989A $6,563,688A LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS&€™ EQUITYCurrent
liabilities:Current portion of long-term debt$82,500A $61,875A Accounts payable and other accrued expenses946,127A 1,050,670A Accrued compensation and
benefits706,894A 506,130A Operating lease liabilities40,898A 43,187A Other current liabilities37,910A 30,328A Total current liabilities1,814,329A 1,692,190A Long-
term debt, net of current portion3,291,215A 3,349,941A Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion181,679A 182,134A Income tax

reserves137,471A 120,237A Other long-term liabilities186,378A 172,624A Total liabilities5,611,072A 5,517,126A Commitments and contingencies (Note
15)Stockholdersa€™ equity:Common stock, Class A - $0.01 par value - authorized: 600,000,000 shares; issued: 167,983,631 and 167,402,268 shares at DecemberA 31,
2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively; outstanding: 127,102,565 and 129,643,123 shares at DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024,

respectivelyl,680A 1,674A Treasury stock, at cost - 40,881,066 and 37,759,145 shares at DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024(2,752,083)(2,277,546)Additional
paid-in capital1,009,759A 908,837A Retained earnings2,947,426A 2,404,065A Accumulated other comprehensive income3,135A 9,532A Total stockholdersa€™
equity1,209,917A 1,046,562A Total liabilities and stockholdersa€™ equity$6,820,989A $6,563,688A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements.1 Table of ContentsA AA A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONCONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS(Unaudited)(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)A Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember

31,A 2024202320242023Revenue$2,917,190A $2,569,801A $9,005,373A $7,890,569A Operating costs and expenses:Cost of

revenuel,305,612A 1,180,961A 4,039,128A 3,665,589A Billable expenses938,534A 799,896A 2,851,537A 2,436,988A General and administrative

expenses341,629A 300,273A 896,335A 915,160A Depreciation and amortization40,156A 41,113A 123,341A 123,867A Total operating costs and

expenses2,625,931A 2,322,243A 2'910'34}‘&* 7,14{,604A Operating income291,259A 247,558A 1,995,032A 748,965A Interest expense(45,629)(46,582)(138,605)
(126,812)0Other income, net2,766A 6,408A 19,682A 11,888A Income before income taxes248,396A 207,384A 976,109A 634,041A Income tax

expense61,446A 61,740A 233,814A 156,291A Net income$186,950A $145,644A $742,295A $477,750A Earnings per common share (Note

4):Basic$1.46A $1.11A $5.75A $3.63A Diluted$1.45A $1.11A $5.73A $3.62A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.2 Table of ContentsA AA A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONCONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Unaudited)(Amounts in thousands)A Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 2024202320242023Net

income$186,950A $145,644A $742,295A $477,750A Other comprehensive income, net of tax:Change in unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges3,300A (6,006)(6,731)(2,681)Change in postretirement plan costs111A (383)334A (1,149)Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax3,411A (6,389)(6,397)
(3,830)Comprehensive income$}9A0,A3Q1A $139,255A $735,898A $473,920A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.3 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONCONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS(Unaudited)(Amounts in thousands)Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 20242023Cash flows from operating activitiesNet

income$742,295A $477,750A Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:Depreciation and amortizationl 23,341A 123,867A Noncash
lease expense38,967A 40,558A Stock-based compensation expense70,830A 61,277A Amortization of debt issuance costs 4,105A 3,580A Loss on debt
extinguishmenta€”A 965A Net (gains) losses on investments, dispositions, and other(10,769)2,188A Changes in operating assets and liabilities:Accounts receivable,
net(158,984)(193,483)Deferred income taxes and income taxes receivable / payable(105,321)(76,982)Prepaid expenses and other current and long-term assets(15,639)
(4,535)Accrued compensation and benefits224,241A 43,758A Accounts payable and other accrued expenses(103,068)(323,730)Other current and long-term
liabilities(20,007)(40,145)Net cash provided by operating activities789,991A 115,068A Cash flows from investing activitiesPurchases of property, equipment, and
software(73,428)(50,532)Payments for business acquisitions and dispositions, net of cash acquired(96,524)(406)Payments for cost method investments(13,813)
(17,316)Net cash used in investing activities(183,765)(68,254)Cash flows from financing activitiesProceeds from issuance of common stock24,859A 20,899A Stock option
exercisesSLOOOA 14,4AOQA Repurchases of common stock(497,116)(303,654)Cash dividends paid(198,437)(186,787)Proceeds from revolving credit R
facilitya€”A 500,000A Repayments on revolving credit facility, term loans, and Senior Notes(41,250)(530,937)Net proceeds from debt issuancea€”A 636,207A Net cash
(used in) provided by financing activities(706,944)150,137A Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents(100,718)196,951A Cash and cash
equivalentsa€“a€“beginning of period554,257A 404,862A Cash and cash equivalentsa€“a€“end of period$453,539A $601,813A Supplemental disclosures of cash flow
informationNet cash paid during the period for:Interest$121,373A $105,259A Income taxes$321,896A $222,267A Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing
activities:Unpaid property, equipment, and software purchases$4,207A $4€”A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.4 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONCONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS&€™
EQUITY(Unaudited)(Amounts in thousands, except share data)Class ACommon StockTreasuryStockAdditionalPaid-
InCapitalRetainedEarningsAccumulatedOtherComprehensivelncome (Loss)TotalStockholdersa€™ EquitySharesAmountSharesAmountBalance at September 30,
2024167,841,004$1,678A (39,939,116)$(2,601,927)$975,216A $2,826,078A $(276)$1,200,769A Issuance of common

stock134,6662A 4€”A a€”A 9,059A &€”A 4€”A 9,061A Stock options exercised7,9614€”A a€”A 4€”A 366A 4€”A a€”A 366A Repurchase of common stock

(1)a€”A a€”A (941,950)(150,156)a€”A a€”A a€”A (150,156)Net incomea€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 186,950A a€”A 186,950A Other comprehensive income, net of
taxa€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A 3,411A 3,411A Dividends paid of $0.51 per share of common stocka€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A (65,602)a€”A (65,602)Stock-based
compensation expense&€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 25,118A 4€”A 4€”A 25,118A Balance at December 31, _

2024167,983,631$1,680A (40,881,066)$(2,752,083)$1,009,759A $2,947,426A $3,135A $1,209,917A Balance at March 31,

2024167,402,268$1,674A (37,759,145)$(2,277,546)$908,837A $2,404,065A $9,532A $1,046,562A Issuance of common

stock483,438A 5A 4€”A 4€”A 25,093A 4€”A 4€”A 25,098A Stock options exercised97,925A 1A 4€”A a€”A 4,999A a€”A 4€”A 5,000A Repurchase of common stock
(2)a€”A €A (3,121,921)(474,537)a€”A a€”A 4€”A (474,537)Net incomea€”A a€”A €A 4€”A 4€”A 742,295A 4€”A 742,295A Other comprehensive loss, net of

taxa€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A (6,397)(6,397)Dividends paid of $1.53 per share of common stocka€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A a€”A (198,934)a€”A (198,934)Stock-based
compensation expensea€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 70,830A a€”A a€”A 70,830A Balance at December 31,

2024167,983,631$1,680A (40,881,066)$(2,752,083)$1,009,759A $2,947,426A $3,135A $1,209,917A (1) During the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, the
Company purchased 0.9 million shares of the Companya€™s Class A Common Stock for $145.0 million. Additionally, the Company repurchased shares for $3.8 million
during the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 to cover the minimum statutory taxes on repurchases and restricted stock units that vested on various dates during
the period.(2) During the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, the Company purchased 3.0 million shares of the Companya€™s Class A Common Stock for $453.5
million. Additionally, the Company repurchased shares for $17.1 million during the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 to cover the minimum statutory taxes on
repurchases and restricted stock units that vested on various dates during the period.The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements.5 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONCONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF




STOCKHOLDERS&€™ EQUITY(Unaudited)(Amounts in thousands, except share data)Class ACommon StockTreasuryStockAdditionalPaid-
InCapitalRetainedEarningsAccumulatedOtherComprehensivelncome (Loss)TotalStockholdersa€ ™ EquitySharesAmountSharesAmountBalance at September 30,
2023166,669,125$1,667A (36,095,259)$(2,054,418)$834,042A $2,258,947A $31,892A $1,072,130A Issuance of common

stock106,4461A a€”A 4€”A 6,951A 4€”A a€”A 6,952A Stock options exercised23,5028€"A 4€”A 4€”A 1,276A a€”A 4€”A 1,276A Repurchase of common stock

(3)a€”A a€”A (764,764)(95,316)a€”A a€”A a€”A (95,316)Net incomea€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 145,644A a€”A 145,644A Other comprehensive loss, net of

taxa€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A a€”A (6,389)(6,389)Dividends paid of $0.47 per share of common stockad€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A (61,821)a€”A (61,821)Stock-based
compensation expense&€”A a€”A 4€”A &€”A 23,767A 4€”A &€”A 23,767A Balance at December 31,

2023166,799,073$1,668A (36,860,023)$(2,149,734)$866,036A $2,342,770A $25,503A $1,086,243A Balance at March 31,

2023165,872,332$1,659A (34,234,744)$(1,859,905)$769,460A $2,051,455A $29,333A $992,002A Issuance of common .

stock610,9456A a€”A a€”A 20,893A a€”A a€”A 20,899A Stock options exercised315,7963A a€”A a€”A 14,406A a€”A a€”A 14,409A Repurchase of common stock

(4)a€”A a€”A (2,625,279)(289,829)a€”A a€”A 4€”A (289,829)Net incomea€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 477,750A 4€”A 477,750A Other comprehensive loss, net of

taxa€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A é§"A é§”A (3,830)(3,830)Dividends paid of $1.41 per share of common stocka€”A a€”A 4€”A a4€”A a€”A (186,435)a€”A (186,435)Stock-based
compensation expensea€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 61,277A a€”A a€”A 61,277A Balance at December 31,

2023166,799,073$1,668A (36,860,023)$(2,149,734)$866,036A $2,342,770A $25,503A $1,086,243A (3) During the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, the
Company purchased 0.8 million shares of the Companya€™s Class A Common Stock for $92.7 million. Additionally, the Company repurchased shares for $1 .8A million
during the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2023 to cover the minimum statutory taxes on repurchases and restricted stock units that vested on various dates during
the period.(4) During the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, the Company purchased 2.5 million shares of the Companya€™s Class A Common Stock for $272.8
million. Additionally, the Company repurchased shares for $14.9 million during the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023 to cover the minimum statutory taxes on
repurchases and restricted stock units that vested on various dates during the period.The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements.6 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)1. Business OverviewBooz Allen Hamilton Holding
Corporation, including its wholly owned subsidiaries, or the Company, we, us, and our, was incorporated in Delaware in May 2008. The Company provides advanced
technology products and services including artificial intelligence, cyber, and digital solutions to U.S. and international governments, major corporations, and not-for-
profit organizations. The Company reports operating results and financial data in one reportable segment. The Company is headquartered in McLean, Virginia, with
approximately 35,900 employees as of DecemberA 31, 2024.2. Basis of PresentationThe accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries that are majority-owned or otherwise controlled by the Company, and have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (a4€ceGAAPa€) and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the
4€0eSECA£) and should be read in conjunction with the information contained in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended MarchA 31, 2024. The
interim period unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are presented as described below. Certain information and disclosures normally required for
annual financial statements have been condensed or omitted pursuant to GAAP and SEC rules and regulations. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered
necessary for fair presentation of the results of the interim periods presented have been included. The Companya€™s fiscal year ends on MarchA 31 and, unless
otherwise noted, references to fiscal year or fiscal are for fiscal years ended MarchA 31. The results of operations for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 are not
necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the full fiscal year.The condensed consolidated financial statements and notes of the Company include its subsidiaries,
and other entities over which the Company has a controlling financial interest or where the Company is a primary beneficiary. Certain amounts reported in the
Company's prior fiscal year condensed consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current fiscal year presentation.Investments in Variable
Interest Entities and Other InvestmentsThe Company invests in certain companies that advance or develop new technologies applicable to its business. Each investment
is evaluated for consolidation under the variable interest entities model and/or the voting interest model. The Company uses the equity method to account for investments
in entities that it does not control if it is otherwise able to exert significant influence over the entities' operating and financial policies. Equity investments in entities over
which the Company does not have the ability to exercise significant influence and whose securities do not have a readily determinable fair value are accounted for under
the measurement alternative, where they are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (e.g., observable price changes or impairment). The results of our
investments are not material to the unaudited condensed and consolidated financial statements for the periods presented. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31,
2024, respectively, the total of equity and other investments related to unconsolidated entities included in other long term assets of the Companya€™s condensed
consolidated balance sheet were $67.2A million and $42.0A million.Accounting EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, as well as the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements or during the relevant reporting periods (as applicable). The Company bases its estimates on assumptions,
both historical and forward-looking, that it believes are reasonable and appropriate. Actual results may differ materially from those estimates. Estimates are used for, but
not limited to, revenue recognition including the profitability of long-term contracts and indirect costs accruals, the provision for claimed costs, fair value measurements
and the valuation and expected lives of intangible assets, incentive compensation, income taxes including reserves for uncertain tax positions, postretirement obligations
and contingencies. See Note 2, &€ceSummary of Significant Accounting Policies&€ to the Companya€™s consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2024 for further details on significant estimates and assumptions used.7 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON
HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per
share data or unless otherwise noted)Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet AdoptedIn November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(a€0eFASBa€) issued Accounting Standards Update (a€0eASU&€) 2023-07, Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which enhances reportable segment
disclosure requirements, including significant segment expenses and interim disclosures (&€ Topic 2804€). The guidance allows for disclosure of multiple measures of a
segmenta€™s profit or loss, and it requires that public entities with a single reportable segment provide all disclosures required by the ASU and all existing disclosures in
Topic 280. ASU 2023-07 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024.
The amendments are to be applied retrospectively, and early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this update and does not expect
this update to have a material impact on its present or historical consolidated financial statements.In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Improvements to
Income Tax Disclosures, which requires disclosure of disaggregated information about an entitya€™s effective tax rate reconciliation as well as information on income
taxes paid. The ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, and should be applied prospectively. The Company plans to adopt this standard in
fiscal 2026 and is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this standard on its financial statement disclosures.In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03,
Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses, which is intended to enhance transparency into the nature and function of certain expenses. The guidance does not
change the expense captions an entity presents on the face of the income statement; rather, it requires public business entities to provide disaggregated disclosures of
certain expense captions in the notes to the financial statements. The ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2027, and should be applied prospectively. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this update. Recently Issued
Accounting Pronouncements AdoptedThere have been no recently adopted accounting pronouncements that are material to the Company's consolidated financial
statements.3. RevenueContract EstimatesWe recognize revenue for many of our fixed price contracts under a contract cost-based input method and require an Estimate-
at-Completion (4€0eEACA&€) process, which management uses to review and monitor the progress towards the completion of our performance obligations. Under this
process, management considers various inputs and assumptions related to the EAC, including, but not limited to, progress towards completion, labor costs and
productivity, material and subcontractor costs, and identified risks. Estimating the total cost at the completion of our performance obligations is subjective and requires
management to make assumptions about future activity and cost drivers under the contract. Changes in these estimates can occur for a variety of reasons and, if
significant, may impact the profitability of the Companya€™s contracts. Changes in estimates related to contracts accounted for under the EAC process are recognized
on a cumulative catch-up basis in the period when such changes are determinable and reasonably estimable. If the estimate of contract profitability indicates an
anticipated loss on a contract, the Company recognizes the total loss at the time it is identified. For each of the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and
2023, the aggregate impact of adjustments in contract estimates was not material.Disaggregation of RevenueWe disaggregate our revenue from contracts with customers
by contract type and by customer type, as well as by whether the Company acts as prime contractor or sub-contractor, as we believe these categories best depict how the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The following series of tables presents our revenue
disaggregated by these categories.8 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)Revenue by Contract

Type:A Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 2024202320242023Cost-

reimbursable$1,673,838A 57A %$1,403,297A 55A %$5,114,805A 57A %$4,317,430A 55A %Time-and- o o o
materials660,031A 23A %614,339A 24A %2,053,417A 23A %1,888,679A 24A %Fixed-price583,321A 20A %552,165A 21A %1,837,151A 20A %1,684,460A 21A %Total
Revenue$2,917,190A 100A %$2,569,801A 100A %$9,005,373A 100A %$7,890,569A 100A %Revenue by Customer Type:Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months
EndedDecember 31,2024202320242023Defense Clients $1,454,686A 50A %$1,225,697A 48A %$4,415,664A 49A %$3,718,335A 47A %Intelligence Clients

451,187A 15A %405,885A 16A %1,408,646A 16A %1,326,342A 17A %Civil Clients (1)1,011,317A 35A %938,219A 36A %3,181,063A 35A %2,845,892A 36A %Total
Revenue$2,917,190A 100A %$2,569,801A 100A %$9,005,373A 100A %$7,890,569A 100A %(1) As of the first quarter of fiscal 2025, Civil Clients includes revenue from
Global Commercial Clients, which was previously separately reported. Prior periodsa€™ revenues have been recast to reflect the change. Revenue by Whether the
Company Acts as a Prime Contractor or a Subcontractor:Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,2024202320242023Prime o
Contractor$2,775,505A 95A %$2,447,401A 95A %$8,584,534A 95A %$7,502,044A 95A %Subcontractor141,685A 5A %122,400A 5A %$420,839A 5A %388,525A 5A %Total
Revenue$2,917,190A 100A %$2,569,801A 100A %$9,005,373A 100A %$7,890,569A 100A %Performance Obligations Remaining performance obligations represent the
transaction price of exercised contracts for which work has not yet been performed, irrespective of whether funding has or has not been authorized and appropriated as
of the date of exercise. Remaining performance obligations exclude negotiated but unexercised options, the unfunded value of expired contracts, and certain variable
consideration which the Company does not expect to recognize as revenue.As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the Company had $9.5 billion and $8.7
billion of remaining performance obligations, respectively. We expect to recognize approximately 70% of the remaining performance obligations at DecemberA 31, 2024
as revenue over the next 12 months, and approximately 80% over the next 24 months. The remainder is expected to be recognized thereafter.9 Table of ContentsA A A A
BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in
thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)Contract BalancesThe following table summarizes the contract assets and liabilities, and accounts
receivable, net of allowance recognized on the Companya€™s condensed consolidated balance sheets:December 31,2024March 31,2024Current assetsAccounts
receivablea€ “billed$771,843A $700,066A Accounts receivabled€“unbilled (contract assets)1,452,730A 1,347,577A Allowance for credit losses(861)(301)Accounts
receivable, netg,223,712A 21047,342A Other long-term assetsAccounts receivablea€“unbilled (contract assets)57,708A 57,355A Total accounts receivable,
net$2,281,420A $2,104,697A Other current liabilitiesAdvance payments, billings in excess of costs incurred and deferred revenue (contract

liabilities)$21,246A $15,527A Changes in contract assets and contract liabilities are primarily due to the timing difference between the Companya€™s performance of
services and payments from customers. For the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we recognized revenue of $1.0 million and $0.4 million, respectively,
and for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we recognized revenue of $10.5 million and $16.6 million, respectively, related to our contract liabilities
on April 1, 2024 and 2023, respectively. To determine revenue recognized from contract liabilities during the reporting periods, the Company allocates revenue to



individual contract liability balances and applies revenue recognized during the reporting periods first to the beginning balances of contract liabilities until the revenue
exceeds the balances. 4. Earnings Per ShareA reconciliation of the income used to compute basic and diluted EPS for the periods presented are as follows:A Three
Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 2024202320242023Numerator (1):Earnings for basic

computations$185,866A $144,431A $738,189A $473,856A Earnings for diluted computations$185,869A $144,433A $738,200A $473,864A Denominator:Weighted-
average common stock shares outstanding, basic127,429,723A 130,121,092128,407,906A 130,647,687Dilutive stock options and restricted

stock510,414A 367,958A 501,587A 411,067Weighted-average common stock shares outstanding, diluted

(2)127,940,137&130,489,0501%8,909,45{35 131,058,754Earnings per common share:Basic$1.46A $1.11A $5.75A $3.63A Diluted

(2)$1.45A $1.11A $5.73A $3.62A (1)A A A A The difference between earnings for basic and diluted computations and net income presented on the condensed
consolidated statements of operations is due to undistributed earnings and dividends allocated to the participating securities. There were approximately 0.7 million and
1.1 million of participating securities for both the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.(2)A A A A The impact of anti-dilutive options
excluded from the calculation of EPS was not material during the periods presented.10 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING
CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or
unless otherwise noted)5. Acquisition, Goodwill and Intangible AssetsAcquisitionOn June 7, 2024, the Company completed the acquisition of PAR Government Systems
Corporation (2€ePGSCa€), a wholly owned subsidiary of PAR Technology Corporation, for approximately $98.7 million, net of post-closing adjustments and incurred
transaction costs as part of the acquisition. PGSC was founded in 1985 and headquartered in Rome, New York, and delivers differentiated services and solutions in
strategic mission areas, including the provision of real-time communications and mobile situational awareness to maintain battlespace dominance for a range of
government customers. The acquisition was funded with cash on hand. As a result of the transaction, PGSC became a wholly owned subsidiary of Booz Allen Hamilton
Inc. The acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting, which requires the total acquisition consideration to be allocated to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on an estimate of the acquisition date fair value, with the difference reflected in goodwill. The Company completed the
determination of fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities assumed during the third quarter of fiscal 2025, except for the purchase price allocation for federal
income tax purposes, which is in the process of being finalized.The goodwill recognized of $61.1 million is primarily attributable to PGSC&€™ s specialized workforce and
the expected synergies between the Company and PGSC, and is deductible for tax purposes. The intangible assets recognized of $27.0 million consist primarily of
contract assets and are being amortized over the estimated useful life of twelve years. GoodwillAs of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, goodwill was $2,404.9
million and $2,343.8 million, respectively. The $61.1 million increase in the carrying amount of goodwill was attributable the Company's acquisition of PGSC.Intangible
AssetsIntangible assets consisted of the following:December 31, 2024March 31, 2024Gross Carrying ValueAccumulated AmortizationNet Carrying ValueGross Carrying
ValueAccumulated AmortizationNet Carrying ValueAmortizable intangible assets:Customer contracts and related customer relationships

$618,894A $287,326A $331,568A $591,895A $237,764A $354,131A Software169,110A 110,816A 58,294A 146,284A 89,572A 56,712A Total amortizable intangible
assets$788,004A $398,142A $389,862A $738,179A $327,336A $410,843A Unamortizable intangible assets:Trade _ . i

name$190,200A $a€”A $190,200A $190,200A $a€”A $190,200A Total$978,204A $398,142A $580,062A $928,379A $327,336A $601,043A The $49.8 million increase in
the gross carrying amount of intangible assets was primarily attributable the Company's acquisition of PGSC, with the remainder resulting from increases in the
Companya€™s internally developed software.6. Accounts Payable and Other Accrued ExpensesAccounts payable and other accrued expenses consisted of the
following:A December 31,2024March 31,2024Vendor payables$640,494A $653,131A Provision for claimed costs246,703A 363,745A Accrued

interest35,189A 14,375A Accrued expenses23,741A 19,419A Total accounts payable and other accrued expenses$946,127A $1,050,670A See Note 15, &4€ceCommitments
and Contingencies,a€ to the condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the Companya€ ™s provision for claimed costs.11 Table of
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tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)7. Accrued Compensation and BenefitsAccrued compensation and benefits consisted of
the following:A December 31,2024March 31,2024Bonus$86,498A $151,063A Retirement158,466A 57,465A Vacation204,796A 223,385A Accrued payroll and related
liabilities247,228A 45,904A Other9,906A 28,313A Total accrued compensation and benefits$706,894A $506,130A The increase in accrued payroll and related liabilities
was due to the Company changing its payroll cadence during fiscal 2025. 8. DebtDebt consisted of the following on the dates bqlow:A December 31, 2024March 31,
20241InterestRateOutstandingBalancelnterestRateOutstandingBalanceTerm Loan A5.707A %$1,546,875A 6.677A %$1,588,125A Senior Notes due

20283.875A %700,000A 3.875A %700,000A Senior Notes due 20294.000A %500,000A 4.000A %500,000A Senior Notes due . .

20335.950A %650,000A 5.950A %650,000A Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs and discount on debt(23,160)(26,309)Total3,373,715A 3,411,816A Less: Current
portion of long-term debt(82,500)(61,875)Long-term debt, net of current portion$3,291,215A $3,349,941A Credit AgreementBooz Allen Hamilton Inc. (4€ceBooz Allen
Hamilton&€), Booz Allen Hamilton Investor Corporation (&€celnvestora€), and certain wholly owned subsidiaries of Booz Allen Hamilton are parties to a Credit Agreement
dated as of July 31, 2012, as amended (the a€ceCredit Agreementa€), with certain institutional lenders and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Collateral
Agent and Issuing Lender. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the Credit Agreement provided Booz Allen Hamilton with a $1,546.9 million Term Loan A (4€ceTerm Loan A&€) and
a $1.0 billion revolving credit facility (the &€ceRevolving Credit Facilitya€), with a sub-limit for letters of credit of $200.0A million. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the
maturity date of Term Loan A and the Revolving Commitments is September 7, 2027. Voluntary prepayments of Term Loan A and the Revolving Loans are permitted at
any time, in minimum principal amounts, without premium or penalty. Booz Allen Hamiltona€™s obligations and the guarantorsa€™ guarantees under the Credit
Agreement were secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets (including capital stock of subsidiaries) of Booz Allen Hamilton, Investor and the
subsidiary guarantors, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Credit Agreement and related documentation; such security was released in connection with Booz
Allen Hamilton obtaining investment grade ratings from both Moody's and S&P. On September 7, 2022 (the &€ceNinth Amendment Effective Date&€), the previously
outstanding Term Loan B loans under the Credit Agreement were prepaid in full.12 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING
CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or
unless otherwise noted)On July 27, 2023 (the &€ceTenth Amendment Effective Datea€), Booz Allen Hamilton entered into a Tenth Amendment (the &€ ceAmendmenta€) to
the Credit Agreement (as amended prior to the Tenth Amendment Effective Date, the a€oeExisting Credit Agreementa€ and, as amended by the Amendment, the
d€eAmended Credit Agreementa€) with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent (in such capacity, the 4€ceAdministrative Agenta€), and the lenders and other
financial institutions party thereto, in order to make permanent certain changes to the Existing Credit Agreement in connection with Booz Allen Hamilton obtaining
investment grade ratings from both Moody's and S&P and prepaying the Term Loan B loans in full and to make certain additional changes in connection therewith,
including, among other things, (i) removing the requirements for the obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement to be secured, (ii) removing the requirement for
any subsidiary or other affiliate of Booz Allen Hamilton (other than the Company) to provide any guarantee of the obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement, and
(iii) removing or modifying certain covenants applicable to Booz Allen Hamilton. Pursuant to the Amendment, all guarantees in respect of the Existing Credit Agreement
have been released. The Amendment did not impact any of the terms of the Credit Agreement related to amortization or payments.On the Tenth Amendment Effective
Date in connection with the Amendment, the Company entered into a Guarantee Agreement (the 4€ceGuarantee Agreementa€) in favor of the Administrative Agent,
pursuant to which the Company guarantees on an unsecured basis the obligations of Booz Allen Hamilton under the Amended Credit Agreement subject to certain
conditions. Pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement Booz Allen Hamilton has the option, though not any obligation, to join one or more of its domestic subsidiaries as
a guarantor under the Guarantee Agreement.Term Loan A amortizes in consecutive quarterly installments in an amount equal to (i) on the last business day of each full
fiscal quarter that begins after the Ninth Amendment Effective Date but on or before the two year anniversary of the Ninth Amendment Effective Date, 0.625% of the
stated principal amount of Term Loan A and (ii) on the last business day of each full fiscal quarter that begins after the two year anniversary of the Ninth Amendment
Effective Date but before the five year anniversary of the Ninth Amendment Effective Date, 1.25% of the stated principal amount of Term Loan A. The remaining balance
of Term Loan A will be payable upon maturity.The rate at which Term Loan A and the Revolving Loans bear interest will be based either on Term SOFR (subject to a
0.10% adjustment and a floor of zero) for the applicable interest period or a base rate (equal to the highest of (i) the administrative agenta€™ s prime corporate rate, (ii)
the overnight federal funds rate plus 0.50% and (iii) three-month Term SOFR (subject to a 0.10% adjustment and a floor of zero) plus 1.00%), in each case plus an
applicable margin, payable at the end of the applicable interest period and in any event at least quarterly. The applicable margin for Term Loan A and the Revolving
Loans ranges from 1.00% to 2.00% for Term SOFR loans and zero to 1.00% for base rate loans, in each case based on the lower of (i) the applicable rate per annum
determined pursuant to a consolidated total net leverage ratio grid and (ii) the applicable rate per annum determined pursuant to a ratings grid. Unused Revolving
Commitments are subject to a quarterly fee ranging from 0.10% to 0.35% based on the lower of (i) the applicable fee rate per annum determined pursuant to a
consolidated total net leverage ratio grid and (ii) the applicable fee rate per annum determined pursuant to a ratings grid. Booz Allen Hamilton has also agreed to pay
customary letter of credit and agency fees. The Company occasionally borrows under the Revolving Credit Facility for our working capital needs. There were no
borrowings during the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively, there was no outstanding balance on
the Revolving Credit Facility.Borrowings under Term Loan A, and if used, the Revolving Credit Facility, incur interest at a variable rate. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the
Company had interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $550.0 million. These instruments hedge the variability of cash outflows for interest payments on
a portion of the Companya€™s floating rate borrowings under the Credit Agreement. The Company's objectives in using cash flow hedges are to reduce volatility due to
interest rate movements and to add stability to interest expense (See Note 9, &€ceDerivatives,a€ to our condensed consolidated financial statements). The Credit
Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and customary affirmative and negative covenants. In connection with Booz Allen Hamilton obtaining
investment grade ratings from both Moody's and S&P, certain activities previously restricted by certain negative covenants are permitted subject to pro forma
compliance with the financial covenants and no events of default having occurred or are continuing. In addition, Booz Allen Hamilton is required to meet certain financial
covenants at each quarter end, specifically the consolidated net total leverage ratio. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, Booz Allen Hamilton was in
compliance with all financial covenants associated with its debt and debt-like instruments.Senior NotesThe following table summarizes the material terms of the
Companya€™s Senior Notes as of DecemberA 31, 2024:13 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)Indenture
DatePrincipallnterest RateMaturity Datelnterest PayableIssuance CostsSenior Notes due 2033&}/4/2023$650,000A 5.950%8/4/2033February and August

4$12,400A Senior Notes due 20296/17/2021500,000A 4.000%7/1/2029]July and January 16,500A Senior Notes due 20288/24/2020700,000A 3.875%9/1/2028March and
September 19,200A Total$1,850,000A $28,100A Interest is payable semi-annually in cash in arrears, with the principal due at maturity. Issuance Costs were recorded as
an offset against the carrying value of respective debt and are being amortized to interest expense over the term of the respective debt. For further information on the
Senior Notes, including terms, conditions, restrictions and redemption options, see Note 10, &€ceDebt,a€ of the Companya€™s consolidated financial statements included
in the fiscal 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K.All Senior Notesa€™ indentures contain certain covenants, events of default and other customary provisions. In connection
with the Senior Notes obtaining investment grade ratings from Moody's and S&P in January 2023, certain negative covenants in the indentures governing the Senior
Notes 2028 and Senior Notes 2029 were suspended, and the related guarantees were released. The Senior Notes due 2033 are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on
an unsecured and unsubordinated basis by Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation, pursuant to the relevant indenture. Interest Expenselnterest expense consisted of
the following: Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,2024202320242023(In thousands)(In thousands)Term Loan

A24,215A 27,459A 77,838A 80,874A Revolving Credit Facilitya€”A 4€”A 4€”A 1,438A Senior Notes21,451A 21,451A 64,350A 51,243A Amortization of Debt Issuance Cost
(DIC) and Original Issue Discount (OID) (1)1,383A 1,335A 4,105A 3,580A Interest Rate Swaps(1,843)(3,846)(8,304)(11,117)Other423A 183A 616A 794A Total Interest
Expense$45,629A $46,582A $138,605A $126,812A (1) DIC and OID on the Term Loans and Senior Notes are recorded as a reduction of long-term debt in the condensed
consolidated balance sheet and are amortized ratably over the life of the related debt using the effective rate method. DIC on the Companya€™s Revolving Credit Facility



is recorded as a long-term asset on the condensed consolidated balance sheet and amortized ratably over the term of the Revolving Credit Facility.9. DerivativesThe
Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk related to its variable rate debt. The Companya€ ™s objectives in using these interest rate
derivatives, which were designated as cash flow hedges, are to manage its exposure to interest rate movements and reduce volatility of interest expense.The following
table summarizes the material terms of the Companya€™s outstanding interest rate swap derivative contracts as of DecemberA 31, 2024:Effective DateMaturity
DateTermsNotional AmountApril 28, 2023June 30, 2025Variable to Fixed$200,000A June 30, 2023June 30, 2026Variable to Fixed150,000A June 28, 2024]June 30,
2027Variable to Fixed200,000A Total$550,000A The variable-to-fixed interest rate swaps effectively convert a portion of the variable rate debt into fixed interest rate
debt.14 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)Derivative instruments are recorded in the condensed
consolidated balance sheet on a gross basis at estimated fair value. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, $2.7 million, $0.2 million, $0.5 million and $1.2 million were classified as
other current assets, other long-term assets, other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively, on the condensed consolidated balance sheet. As

ofA MarchA 31, 2024, $8.7 million andA $1.6 million were classified as other current assets and other long-term assets, respectively, on the condensed consolidated
balance sheet. For interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges, the changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (a€0cAOCIa€), net of taxes, and are subsequently reclassified into interest expense, net in the period that the hedged forecasted interest payments are made on
the Company's variable-rate debt. The effect of derivative instruments on the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements for the periods presented is as
follows:Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging RelationshipsPre-Tax Gain (Loss) Recognized in AOCI on DerivativesPre-Tax Gain Reclassified from AOCI into IncomeThree
Months EndedDecember 31,Three Months EndedDecember 31,2024202320242023Interest rate swaps (1)$6,294A $(4,283)$1,843A $3,846A Derivatives in Cash Flow
Hedging RelationshipsPre-Tax (Loss) Gain Recognized in AOCI on DerivativesPre-Tax Gain Reclassified from AOCI into Income Nine Months EndedDecember 31,Nine
Months EndedDecember 31,2024202320242023Interest rate swaps (1)$(773)$7,489A $8,304A $11,117A (1) The reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive
income to net income are included in interest expense in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.Over the next 12 months, the Company estimates that
$2.2 million will be reclassified as a decrease to interest expense. Cash flows associated with periodic settlements of interest rate swaps will be classified as operating
activities in the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows.10. Income TaxesThe Companya€™s effective income tax rates were 24.7% and 29.8% for the three
months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and 24.0% and 24.7% for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Our effective
tax rates for these periods differ from the federal statutory rate of 21.0% primarily due to the inclusion of state and foreign income taxes and permanent rate differences,
which are predominantly related to certain executive compensation and the accrual of reserves for uncertain tax positions, offset by research and development tax
credits, excess tax benefits for employee share-based compensation, and the Foreign Derived Intangible Income deduction.As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31,
2024 the Company recorded $131.0A million and $115.4 million, respectively, of reserves for uncertain tax positions primarily related to research and development tax
credits. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the Company has recorded both a current income tax receivable (classified as prepaid expenses and other
current assets) and a current income tax payable (classified as other current liabilities) on its condensed consolidated balance sheet. These amounts are reflective of
fiscal 2025 and 2024 tax accruals in each U.S. Federal, state, and foreign jurisdiction, as adjusted for estimated payments made to date. In addition, as of DecemberA 31,
2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the Company has recorded a long-term income tax receivable of $152.5A million, which represents the amended U.S. federal return refund
claims for research and development tax credits and the carryback claim for the fiscal 2021 net operating loss which is classified as other long-term assets on the
condensed consolidated balance sheet. The Company is currently under federal audit by the IRS for fiscal years 2016, 2017, and 2019-2021 and the receipt of our U.S
federal return refund claims is contingent upon the completion of the ongoing IRS audits.15 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING
CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or
unless otherwise noted)11. Employee Benefit PlansThe Company sponsors the Employeesa€™ Capital Accumulation Plan (the &4€0eECAP&€) which is a qualified defined
contribution plan that covers eligible U.S. and certain international employees. The ECAP provides for distributions to participants by reason of retirement, death,
disability, or termination of employment. The Company provides an annual matching contribution of up to 6% of eligible annual compensation.A Total expense recognized
for matching contributions under the ECAP were $62.1 million and $55.5 million for the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024A andA 2023, respectively, and $185.0
million and $163.7 million for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024A andA 2023, respectively.The Company also provides post-retirement healthcare benefits to
former officers under a medical indemnity insurance plan, with premiums paid by the Company. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the unfunded status of
the post-retirement medical plan was $131.0A million and $127.0A million, respectively, which is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheets. Balance sheet and income statement impacts of any remaining benefit plans are immaterial for all periods presented in these condensed
consolidated financial statements.A A A A 12. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)All amounts recorded in other comprehensive income are related to the
Company's post-retirement plans and interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges. The following table shows the changes in accumulated other comprehensive
income, net of tax:Three Months Ended December 31, 2024Nine Months Ended December 31, 2024Post-retirement plansDerivatives designated as cash flow
hedgesTotalsPost-retirement plansDerivatives designated as cash flow hedgesTotalsBeginning of period$2,199A $(2,475)$(276)$1,976A $7,556A $9,532A Other
comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications(1) 4€”A 4,667A 4,667A a€”A (573)(573)Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
(2)111A (1,367)(1,256)334A (6,158)(5,824)Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss)111A 3,300A 3,411A 334A (6,731)(6,397)End of

period$2,310A $825A $3,135A $2,310A $825A $3,135A (1) Changes in other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassification for derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges are recorded net of tax (expense) benefit of $(1.6) million and $0.2 million for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, respectively. The tax impact
of other comprehensive income before reclassification for post-retirement plans for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 was immaterial.(2) The
reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income to net income for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded net of tax expense of $(0.5)
million and $(2.1) million for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, respectively. The tax impact of reclassifications from accumulated other
comprehensive loss to net income for post-retirement plans for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 was immaterial. Three Months Ended December 31,
2023Nine Months Ended December 31, 2023Post-retirement plansDerivatives designated as cash flow hedgesTotalsPost-retirement plansDerivatives designated as cash
flow hedgesTotalsBegir_ming of period$18,§84A $13,208A $31,892A $19,450A $9,883A $29,333A Other comprehensive (loss) income before

reclassifications(3)a€”A (3,165)(3,165)4€”A 5,535A 5,535A Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income(4)(383)(2,841)(3,224)(1,149)(8,216)
(9,365)Net current-period other comprehensive loss(383)(6,006)(6,389)(1,149)(2,681)(3,830)End of period$18, 301A $7,202A $25,503A $18,301A $7,202A $25,503A 16
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STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)(3) Changes in other comprehensive income before
reclassification for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded net of tax benefit (expense) of $1.1 million and $(2.0) million for the three and nine months
ended DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively.(4) The reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income to net income for derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges are recorded net of tax expense of $(1.0) million and $(2.9) million for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively. The tax impact of
reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income to net income for post-retirement plans for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023 was
immaterial.13. Stock-Based CompensationThe following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of
operations:A Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 2024202320242023Cost of revenue$9,115A $9,348A $25,938A $26,300A General and
administrative expenses16,003A 14,419A 44,892A 34,977A Total$25,118A $23,767A $70,830A $61,277A The following table summarizes the total stock-based
compensation expense recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations by the following types of equity awards, including stock options, time-based
and performance-based restricted stock awards. Compensation expense for performance-based awards is estimated at each reporting date using management's
expectation of the probable achievement of the specified performance criteria of each tranche during the respective performance periods:A Three Months
EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 2024202320242023Equity Incentive Plan Options$22 1A $297A $731A $991A Restricted Stock and other
awards24,897A 23,470A 70,099A 60,286A Total$25,118A $23,767A $70,830A $61,277A As of DecemberA 31, 2024, there was $92.1 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to unvested stock-based compensation agreements. Absent the effect of forfeiture or acceleration of stock compensation cost for any
departures of employees, the following table summarizes the unrecognized compensation cost and the weighted-average period the cost is expected to be amortized
(excludes any future award):December 31, 2024Unrecognized Compensation CostWeighted Average Remaining Period to be Recognized (in years)Equity Incentive Plan
Options$1,514A 3.10Restricted Stock Awards90,634A 1.78Total$92,148A Equity Incentive PlanDuring the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, the Board of
Directors granted 0.6A million time-based and performance-based restricted stock units to certain employees of the Company. The aggregate value of these awards
wasA $97.1A million based on the grant date fair value. The performance-based awards granted during the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 included additional
market conditions related to the Companya€™s total shareholder return relative to its peer group over the three-year performance period. The Company recognizes
compensation expense for these performance-based awards with market conditions based on the grant-date fair value calculated using a Monte Carlo model.17 Table of
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tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)14. Fair Value MeasurementsRecurring Fair Value MeasurementsThe accounting
standard for fair value measurements establishes a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: observable inputs such
as quoted prices in active markets (Level 1); inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly (Level 2); and unobservable
inputs in which there is little or no market data, which requires the Company to develop its own assumptions (Level 3). A financial instrument's level within the fair value
hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The financial instruments measured at fair value in the accompanying
condensed consolidated balance sheets consist of the following:Recurring Fair Value Measurementsas of December 31, 2024Level 1Level 2Level 3TotalAssets:Current
derivative instruments (1)$é€’_’A $2,689A $a€”A $2,689A Long-term derivative instruments (1)a€”A 228A a€”A 228A Long-term deferred compensation plan asset
(2)36,827A 4€”A é€A"A 36,827A Total Assets$36,827A $2,917A $4€”A $39,744A Liabilities:Current derivative instruments (1)a€”A 522A a€”A 522A Long-term derivative
instruments (1)a€”A 1,204A a€”A 1,204A Long-term deferred compensation plan liability (2) 36,827A &€”A a€”A 36,827A Total

Liabilities$36,827A $1,726A $a€”A $38,553A Recurring Fair Value Measurementsas of March 31, 2024Level 1Level 2Level 3TotalAssets:Current derivative instruments
(1)$a€"A $8,713A $a€"A $8,713A Long-term derivative instruments (1)4€”A 1,556A 4€”A 1,556A Long-term deferred compensation plan asset (2)

28,957A a€”A a€”A 28,957A Total Assets$28,957A $10,269A $a€”A $39,226A Liabilities:Long-term deferred compensation plan liability (2)

28,957A 4€”A 4€”A 28,957A Total Liabilities$28,957A $a€”A $a€”A $28,957A (1) The Companya€™s interest rate swaps are considered over-the-counter derivatives and
fair value is estimated based on the present value of future cash flows using a model-derived valuation that uses Level 2 observable inputs such as interest rate yield
curves. See Note 9, &€eDerivatives,a€ to the condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion on the Companya€™s derivative instruments designated
as cash flow hedges. (2) Investments in this category consist primarily of mutual funds whose fair values are determined by reference to the quoted market price per unit
in active markets multiplied by the number of units held without consideration of transaction costs. These assets and liabilities represent investments held in a
consolidated trust to fund the Company's non-qualified deferred compensation plan and are recorded in other long-term assets and other long-term liabilities on our
condensed consolidated balance sheets.Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable SecuritiesThe fair value of the Company's cash and cash equivalents, which are Level 1
inputs, approximated its carrying value at DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024. The Companya€™s cash and cash equivalent balances presented on the
accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets include $215. 0A million and $192.7A million of marketable securities in money market funds as of DecemberA 31,
2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively.18 Table of ContentsA A A A BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)Long-term DebtThe Company's
long-term debt is carried at amortized cost and is measured at fair value quarterly for disclosure purposes. The estimated fair values are determined using quoted prices



or other market information obtained from recent trading activity of the debt in markets that are not active (Level 2 inputs). The fair value is corroborated by prices
derived from the interest rate spreads of recently completed leveraged loan transactions of a similar credit profile, industry, and terms to that of the Company. The fair
value of the Senior Notes are determined using quoted prices or other market information obtained from recent trading activity in the high-yield bond market (Level 2
inputs). The carrying amount and estimated fair value of long-term debt consists of the following:December 31, 2024March 31, 2024Carrying AmountEstimated Fair
ValueCarrying AmountEstimated Fair ValueTerm Loan A$1,546,875A $1,544,941A $1,588,125A $1,582,170A 3.875% Senior Notes due

2028700,000A 662,802A 700,000A 656,677A 4.000% Senior Notes due 2029500,000A 470,890A 500,000A 465,470A 5.950% Senior Notes due

2033650,000A 665,158A 650,000A 672,815A Nonrecurring Fair Value MeasurementsAs of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the total of our investments that
are accounted for at fair value on a non-recurring basis under the measurement alternative were $61.9A million and $37.4A million, respectively. While these assets are
not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis, they are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (e.g., observable price changes or impairment). We did
not have any material measurement adjustments during the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, with the exception of the assets and liabilities acquired through our
acquisitions (see Note 5, &€ceAcquisition, Goodwill and Intangible Assets,a€ to the condensed consolidated financial statements). 15. Commitments and
ContingenciesLetters of Credit and Third-Party GuaranteesAs of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the Company was contingently liable under open standby
letters of credit and bank guarantees issued by our banks in favor of third parties that totaled $4.5 million and $4.4 million, respectively. These letters of credit and bank
guarantees primarily support insurance and bid and performance obligations. At DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively, approximately $1.4 million and
$1.3 million of these instruments reduced the available borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. The remainder is guaranteed under a separate $7.5 million facility
of which $4.5 million and $4.4 million was available to the Company at DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively.Government Contracting Matters -
Provision for Claimed CostsFor both the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, approximately 98% of the Company's revenue was generated from contracts
where the end user was an agency or department of the U.S. government, including contracts where the Company performed either as a prime contractor or
subcontractor, and regardless of the geographic location in which the work was performed. For both the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023,
approximately 98% of the Company's revenue was generated from such contracts. As noted in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
MarchA 31, 2024, in the ordinary course of business, agencies of the U.S. government, including the Defense Contract Audit Agency (&€0eDCAA&€), audit the
Companya€™s claimed costs and conduct inquiries and investigations of our business practices with respect to government contracts to determine whether the
Company's operations are conducted in accordance with these requirements and the terms of the relevant contracts. Based upon information obtained from DCAA&€™s
audit findings over four historical rate years, the Company changed its estimate and reduced a portion of its provision for claimed costs during the second quarter of
fiscal 2025, which resulted in a $121.7A million increase to revenue, to reflect our best estimate of the final cost rates for the outstanding audit years. Operating income
for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 was accordingly increased by $121.7A million and net income was increased by $90.1A million (or $0.70 of basic and
$0.70 diluted earnings per common share for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024). Our final cost rates for the recently audited years remain subject to
negotiation with the Defense Contract Management Agency (4€ceDCMA&€) Administrative Contracting Officer. Management believes it has recorded the appropriate
provision for claimed costs for any audit, inquiry, or investigation of which it is aware that may be subject to any reductions and/or penalties.A As of DecemberA 31, 2024
and MarchA 31, 2024, the Company had recorded liabilities of approximately $246.7 million and $363.7 million, respectively, for estimated adjustments to claimed costs
based on its historical DCAA audit results, including the final resolution of such audits with DCMA, for claimed costs incurred subsequent to fiscal 2011.19 Table of
ContentsA A AA BOOZ ALLEN HAMILTON HOLDING CORPORATIONNOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(Amounts in
tables in thousands, except share and per share data or unless otherwise noted)Litigation Our performance under U.S. government contracts and compliance with the
terms of those contracts and applicable laws and regulations are subject to continuous audit, review, and investigation by the U.S. government, which may include such
investigative techniques as subpoenas or civil investigative demands. Given the nature of our business, these audits, reviews, and investigations may focus, among other
areas, on various aspects of procurement integrity, labor time reporting, sensitive and/or classified information access and control, executive compensation, and post
government employment restrictions. We are not always aware of our status in such matters, but we are currently aware of certain pending audits and investigations
involving labor time reporting, procurement integrity, and classified information access. In addition, from time to time, we are also involved in legal proceedings and
investigations arising in the ordinary course of business, including those relating to employment matters, relationships with clients and contractors, intellectual property
disputes, and other business matters. These legal proceedings seek various remedies, including claims for monetary damages in varying amounts, none of which are
considered material, or are unspecified as to amount. Although the outcome of any such matter is inherently uncertain and may be materially adverse, based on current
information, we do not expect any of the currently ongoing audits, reviews, investigations, or litigation to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations. As of both DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, there were no material amounts accrued in the condensed consolidated financial statements
related to these proceedings as either the amounts are immaterial or the Company is not able to reasonably estimate the expected amount or range of cost or any loss
associated with these matters.During the second quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company secured insurance recoveries of $115.3 million from claims related to the
Companya€™s settlement described in Note 20, &€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the consolidated financial statements contained within our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. The insurance recoveries offset our general and administrative expenses in our Condensed Consolidated Statement
of Operations.20 Table of ContentsA A A A TtemA 2.A A A A Managementd€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsThe following
discussion and analysis is intended to help the reader understand our business, financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity and capital resources. You should
read this discussion in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and the related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q, or Quarterly Report.The statements in this discussion regarding industry outlook, our expectations regarding our future performance, liquidity and capital resources,
and other non-historical statements in this discussion are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties,
including, but not limited to, the risks and uncertainties described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended MarchA 31, 2024 filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 24, 2024, or Annual Report, and under Part II, &€celtem 1A. Risk Factors,a€ and &€ea€” Special Note Regarding Forward Looking
Statementsa€ of this Quarterly Report. Our actual results may differ materially from those contained in or implied by any forward-looking statements.Our fiscal year ends
MarchA 31 and, unless otherwise noted, references to years or fiscal are for fiscal years ended MarchA 31. See a€cea€”Results of Operations.a€OverviewTrusted to
transform missions with the power of tomorrowa€™s technologies, Booz Allen advances the nationa€™s most critical civil, defense, and national security priorities. Our
ability to deliver value to our clients has always been, and continues to be, a product of the strong character, expertise and tremendous passion of our people. Our
approximately 35,900 employees work to solve hard problems by making clients' missions their own, combining decades of consulting and domain expertise with
functional expertise in areas such as analytics, digital solutions, engineering, cyber and artificial intelligence, all fostered by a culture of innovation that extends to all
reaches of the Company. Through our dedication to our clients' missions, and a commitment to evolving our business to address their needs, we have longstanding
relationships with our clients, the longest of which is more than 80 years. We support critical missions for a diverse base of federal government clients, including nearly
all of the U.S.A government's cabinet-level departments, as well as for commercial clients, both domestically and internationally. We support our federal government
clients by helping them tackle their most complex and pressing challenges such as protecting soldiers in combat and supporting their families, advancing cyber
capabilities, keeping our national infrastructure secure, enabling and enhancing digital services, transforming the healthcare system, and improving government
efficiency to achieve better outcomes. We serve commercial clients across industries including financial services, health and life sciences, energy, and
technology.Financial and Other Highlights During the third quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company generated year over year revenue growth and increased client staff
headcount.Revenue increased 13.5% to $2,917.2 million in the three months ended pecemberA 31, 2024 from $2,569.8 million in the three months ended DecemberA 31,
2023, and increased 14.1% to $9,005.4 million in the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 from $7,890.6 million in the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023. The
increase was primarily driven by strong demand for our services and solutions as well as continued headcount growth and higher billable expenses. In addition, revenue
was positively impacted by $121.7A million representing the reduction to our provision for claimed costs recorded during the second quarter of fiscal 2025. See Note 15,
d€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the condensed consolidated financial statements for further information.Operating income increased 17.7% to $291.3 million
in the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 from $247.6 million in the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, which reflects an increase in operating margin from
9.6% to 10.0%. Operating income increased 46.2% to $1,095.0 million in the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 from $749.0 million in the nine months ended
DecemberA 31, 2023, which reflects an increase in operating margin from 9.5% to 12.2%. Operating income was primarily driven by the same drivers benefiting revenue
growth as well as strong contract-level performance coupled with ongoing cost management efforts. Margins were impacted by a decrease in general and administrative
expenses in the year to date period resulting from $115.3 million in insurance recoveries from claims related to the Companya€™s fiscal 2024 settlement as described in
Note 20, &4€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the consolidated financial statements contained within the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2024. 21 Table of ContentsA A A A Non-GAAP MeasuresWe publicly disclose certain non-GAAP financial measurements, including Revenue, Excluding Billable
Expenses, Adjusted Operating Income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses,
Adjusted Net Income, and Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share, or Adjusted Diluted EPS. We view Adjusted Operating Income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA
Margin on Revenue, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, Adjusted Net Income, and Adjusted Diluted EPS as measures of our core
operating business, which exclude the impact of the items detailed below, as these items are generally not operational in nature. These non-GAAP measures also provide
another basis for comparing period to period results by excluding potential differences caused by non-operational and unusual or non-recurring items. In addition, we use
Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses because it provides management useful information about the Company's operating performance by excluding the impact of costs
that are not indicative of the level of productivity of our client staff headcount and our overall direct labor, which management believes provides useful information to our
investors about our core operations. We also utilize and discuss Free Cash Flow because management uses this measure for business planning purposes, measuring the
cash generating ability of the operating business, and measuring liquidity generally. We present these supplemental measures because we believe that these measures
provide investors and securities analysts with important supplemental information with which to evaluate our performance, long-term earnings potential, or liquidity, as
applicable, and to enable them to assess our performance on the same basis as management.A These supplemental performance measurements may vary from and may
not be comparable to similarly titled measures by other companies in our industry. Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, Adjusted Operating Income, Adjusted EBITDA,
Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted Diluted EPS, and Free Cash
Flow are not recognized measurements under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP, and when analyzing our performance or liquidity,
as applicable, investors should (i) evaluate each adjustment in our reconciliation of revenue to Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, operating income to Adjusted
Operating Income, net income to Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, Adjusted
Net Income and Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per Share, and net cash provided by operating activities to Free Cash Flow, (ii) use Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses,
Adjusted Operating Income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, Adjusted Net
Income, and Adjusted Diluted EPS in addition to, and not as an alternative to, revenue, operating income, net income or diluted EPS, as measures of operating results,
each as defined under GAAP and (iii) use Free Cash Flow in addition to, and not as an alternative to, net cash provided by operating activities as a measure of liquidity,
each as defined under GAAP. We have defined the aforementioned non-GAAP measures as follows:a€¢a€ceRevenue, Excluding Billable Expensesa€ represents revenue
less billable expenses. We use Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses because it provides management useful information about the Company's operating performance by
excluding the impact of costs that are not indicative of the level of productivity of our client staff headcount and our overall direct labor, which management believes
provides useful information to our investors about our core operations.a€¢a€oeAdjusted Operating Incomea€ represents operating income before change in provision for
claimed costs for historical rate years, acquisition and divestiture costs, financing transaction costs, significant acquisition amortization, the reserve associated with the
U.S. Department of Justice investigation disclosed in Note 20, & ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended



March 31, 2024, and insurance recoveries related to the Companya€™s fiscal 2024 settlement disclosed in Note 20, &€ ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. We prepare Adjusted Operating Income to eliminate the impact of items we do not consider
indicative of ongoing operating performance due to their inherent unusual, extraordinary, or non-recurring nature or because they result from an event of a similar
nature.a€¢a€ceAdjusted EBITDAA€ represents net income before income taxes, net interest and other expense and depreciation and amortization and before certain
other items, including change in provision for claimed costs for historical rate years, acquisition and divestiture costs, financing transaction costs, the reserve associated
with the U.S. Department of Justice investigation disclosed in Note 20, &€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2024, and insurance recoveries related to the Companya€™s fiscal 2024 settlement disclosed in Note 20, &€ ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024. a€ceAdjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenuea€ is calculated as Adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue.
a€ceAdjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenseséa€ is calculated as Adjusted EBITDA divided by Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses. The
Company prepares Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, and Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses to eliminate the
impact of items it does not consider indicative of ongoing operating performance due to their inherent unusual, extraordinary or non-recurring nature or because they
result from an event of a similar nature.22 Table of ContentsA A A A 4€¢a€ceAdjusted Net Incomea€ represents net income before: (i) change in provision for claimed
costs for historical rate years, (ii) acquisition and divestiture costs, (iii) financing transaction costs, (iv) significant acquisition amortization, (v) the reserve associated
with the U.S. Department of Justice investigation disclosed in Note 20, &€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2024, (vi), insurance recoveries related to the Companya€™s fiscal 2024 settlement disclosed in Note 20, &€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, and (vii) amortization or write-off of debt issuance costs and debt discount, in each case net of the
tax effect where appropriate calculated using an assumed effective tax rate. We prepare Adjusted Net Income to eliminate the impact of items, net of tax, we do not
consider indicative of ongoing operating performance due to their inherent unusual, extraordinary, or non-recurring nature or because they result from an event of a
similar nature. We view Adjusted Net Income as an important indicator of performance consistent with the manner in which management measures and forecasts the
Company's performance and the way in which management is incentivized to perform.a€¢a€oeAdjusted Diluted EPS&€ represents diluted EPS calculated using Adjusted
Net Income as opposed to net income. Additionally, Adjusted Diluted EPS does not contemplate any adjustments to net income as required under the two-class method as
disclosed in the footnotes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.a€¢a€oeFree Cash Flowa€ represents the net cash generated from operating activities less
the impact of purchases of property, equipment, and software. "Free Cash Flow Conversion" is calculated as Free Cash Flow divided by Adjusted Net Income.Below is a
reconciliation of Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, Adjusted Operating Income, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Adjusted EBITDA Margin on
Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses, Adjusted Net Income, Adjusted Diluted EPS, and Free Cash Flow to the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and
presented in accordance with GAAP.23 Table of ContentsA A A A A Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,(In thousands, except share and
per share data)2024202320242023A (Unaudited)(Unaudited)Revenue, Excluding Billable ExpensesRevenue$2,917,190$2,569,801$9,005,373$7,890,569Less: Billable
expenses938,534799,8962,851,5372,436,988Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses*$1,978,656$1,769,905$6,153,836$5,453,581Adjusted Operating IncomeOperating
income$291,259$247,558$1,095,032$748,965Change in provision for claimed costs (a)a€”a€”(113,112)(18,345)Acquisition and divestiture costs
(b)3061,9527,6935,480Financing transaction costs (c)a€”a€”a€”820Significant acquisition amortization (d)13,38613,59739,39640,301Legal matter reserve
(e)a€”a€”a€”27,453Insurance recoveries (f)a€”a€”(115,320)a€”Adjusted Operating Income$304,951$263,107$913,689$804,674EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA Margin on Revenue & Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable ExpensesNet income$186,950$145,644$742,295$477,750Income tax
expense61,44661,740233,814156,2911Interest and other, net (g)42,86340,174118,923114,924Depreciation and
amortization40,15641,113123,341123,867EBITDA331,415288,6711,218,373872,832Change in provision for claimed costs (a)a€”a€”(113,112)(18,345)Acquisition and
divestiture costs (b)3061,9527,6935,480Financing transaction costs (c)a€”a€”a€”820Legal matter reserve (e)a€”a€”a€"27,453Insurance recoveries
(f)a€”a€”(115,320)a€"Adjusted EBITDA$331,721$290,623$997,634$888,240Net income marginG.4%5.7%8.2%6.1%Adjusted EBITDA Marginon
Revenuel1.4%11.3%11.1%11.3%Adjusted EBITDA Margin on Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses16.8%16.4%16.2%16.3%24 Table of ContentsA A A A Three Months
EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,(In thousands, except share and per share data)2024202320242023(Unaudited)(Unaudited)Adjusted Net
IncomeNet income$186,950$145,644$742,295$477,750Change in provision for claimed costs (a)a€”a€”(113,112)(18,345)Acquisition and divestiture costs
(b)3061,9527,6935,480Financing transaction costs (c)a€”a€”a€”820Significant acquisition amortization (d)13,38613,59739,39640,301Legal matter reserve
(e)a€”a€”a€"27,453Insurance recoveries (f)a€”a€”(115,320)a€”Amortization and write-off of debt issuance costs and debt discount1,0991,0623,2642,950Adjustments for
tax effect (h)(3,845)22,04846,30110,094Adjusted Net Income$197,896$184,303$610,517$546,503Adjusted Diluted Earnings Per ShareWeighted-average number of
diluted shares outstanding127,940,137130,489,050128,909,493131,058,754Diluted earnings per share$1.45$1.11$5.73$3.62Adjusted Net Income Per Diluted Share
(1)$1.55$1.41$4.74$4.17Free Cash FlowNet cash provided by (used in) operating activities$150,772$233,985$789,991$115,068Less: Purchases of property, equipment
and software(17,181)(23,096)(73,428)(50,532)Free cash flow$133,591$210,889$716,563$64,5360perating cash flow conversion81%161%106%24%Free cash flow
conversion68%114%117%12% * Revenue, Excluding Billable Expenses includes $113.1 million and $18.3A million of revenue for the nine months ending December 31,
2024 and 2023 respectively, resulting from the reduction to our provision for claimed costs as noted below.(a)Represents the reduction to our provision for claimed costs
for years prior to fiscal 2025 recorded during the second quarters of fiscal 2025 and 2024, which resulted in a corresponding increase to revenue, as a result of the
Defense Contract Audit Agency's findings related to its audits of our claimed costs for multiple fiscal years. See Note 15, &€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€to the
condensed consolidated financial statements for further information.(b)Represents costs associated with the acquisition efforts of the Company related to transactions for
which the Company has entered into a letter of intent to acquire a controlling financial interest in the target entity. Transactions primarily include the acquisitions of
EverWatch Corp. (4€eEverWatché€) in fiscal 2023 and PAR Government Systems Corporation (4€0ePGSC4a€) in fiscal 2025. See Note 5, a€aeAcquisition, Goodwill, and
Intangible Assets,a€to the condensed consolidated financial statements for further information.(c)Reflects expenses associated with debt financing activities incurred
during the second quarter of fiscal 2024.(d)Amortization expense associated with acquired intangibles from significant acquisitions.(e)Reserve associated with the U.S.
Department of Justice's investigation of the Company. See Note 20, &€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the consolidated financial statements contained within the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 for further information.(f)Reflects insurance recoveries from claims related to the Companya€™s
fiscal 2024 settlement as described in Note 20, &€ ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the consolidated financial statements contained within the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024.(g)Reflects the combination of Interest expense and Other income, net from the condensed consolidated statement of
operations.(h)Reflects the tax effect of adjustments at an assumed effective tax rate of 26%, which approximates the blended federal and state tax rates, and consistently
excludes the impact of other tax credits and incentive benefits realized. The tax effect of certain discrete items is calculated specifically and may vary from the general
26% rate. The prior period tax effect also includes an adjustment related to the indirect effects of the application of Section 174 of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017
($26.0 million and $22.0 million for the three and nine months ended December 31, 2023, respectively).25 Table of ContentsA A A A (i)Excludes adjustments of
approximately $1.1A million and $4.1 million of net earnings for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, respectively, and approximately $1.2 million and
$3.9 million of net earnings for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively, associated with the application of the two-class method for
computing diluted earnings per share.Factors and Trends Affecting Our Results of OperationsOur results of operations have been, and we expect them to continue to be,
affected by the following factors, which may cause our future results of operations to differ from our historical results of operations discussed under a€oea€”Results of
Operations.a€Business Environment and Key Trends in Our MarketsWe believe that the following trends and developments in the U.S. government services industry and
our markets may influence our future results of operations:a€¢uncertainty around the timing, extent, nature and effect of Congressional and other U.S. government
actions to approve funding of the U.S. government, address budgetary constraints, including caps on the discretionary budget for defense and non-defense departments
and agencies, as established by the Bipartisan Budget Control Act of 2011 (&€0eBCA&€) and subsequently adjusted by the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, the
Bipartisan Budget Act of 2013, the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015, the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2018, and the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2019, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security Act (the &€ CARES Acta€), and the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021, and address the ability of Congress to determine how to allocate the
available budget authority and pass appropriations bills to fund both U.S. government departments and agencies that are, and those that are not, subject to the caps;a€
¢budget deficits and the growing U.S. national debt increasing pressure on the U.S. government to reduce federal spending across all federal agencies together with
associated uncertainty about the size and timing of those reductions;a€¢cost-cutting and efficiency initiatives, current and future budget restrictions, continued
implementation of Congressionally mandated automatic spending cuts, and other efforts to reduce U.S. government spending could cause clients to reduce or delay
funding for orders for services or invest appropriated funds on a less consistent or rapid basis or not at all, particularly when considering long-term initiatives and in light
of current uncertainty around Congressional efforts to craft a long-term agreement on the U.S. government's ability to incur indebtedness in excess of its current limits,
and generally in the current political environment, there is a risk that clients will not issue task orders in sufficient volume to reach current contract ceilings, alter
historical patterns of contract awards, including the typical increase in the award of task orders or completion of other contract actions by the U.S. government in the
period before the end of the U.S. government's fiscal year on September 30, delay requests for new proposals and contract awards, rely on short-term extensions and
funding of current contracts, or reduce staffing levels and hours of operation;a€¢delays in the completion of future U.S. governmenta€™s budget processes, which have
in the past and could in the future delay procurement of the products, services, and solutions we provide; a€¢changes in the relative mix of overall U.S. government
spending and areas of spending growth, with lower spending on homeland security, intelligence, defense-related programs as certain overseas operations end, and
continued increased spending on cybersecurity, Command, Control, Communications, Computers, Intelligence, Surveillance, and Reconnaissance (C4ISR), advanced
analytics, technology integration, and healthcare, including as a result of the presidential and administration transition;a€¢the extent, nature and effect of disease
outbreaks, pandemics and widespread health epidemics, such as COVID-19, including the impact on federal budgets, current and pending procurements, supply chains,
demand for services, deployment and productivity of our employees and the economic and societal impact of a pandemic, and the expected continued volatility in billable
expenses;a€¢increased inflationary pressure that could impact the cost of doing business and/or reduce customer buying power;a€¢risks related to a possible recession
and volatility or instability of the global financial system, including bank failures and the resulting impact on counterparties and business conditions generally;a€
¢legislative and regulatory changes, or shifts in regulatory priorities as a result of U.S. administration transitions, including limitations on the amount of allowable
executive compensation permitted under flexibly priced contracts following implementation of interim rules adopted by federal agencies pursuant to the Bipartisan
Budget Act of 2013, which substantially further reduce the amount of allowable executive compensation under these contracts and extend these limitations to a larger
segment of our executives and our entire contract base;26 Table of ContentsA A A A a€¢efforts by the U.S. government to address organizational conflicts of interest and
related issues and the impact of those efforts on us and our competitors; &€¢increased audit, review, investigation, and general scrutiny by U.S. government agencies of
government contractors' performance under U.S. government contracts and compliance with the terms of those contracts and applicable laws; d€¢the federal focus on
refining the definition of &€ceinherently governmentala€ work, including proposals to limit contractor access to sensitive or classified information and work assignments,
which will continue to drive pockets of insourcing in various agencies, particularly in the intelligence market;a€¢negative publicity and increased scrutiny of government
contractors in general, including us, relating to U.S. government expenditures for contractor services and incidents involving the mishandling of sensitive or classified
information;4€¢U.S. government agencies awarding contracts on a technically acceptable/lowest cost basis, which could have a negative impact on our ability to win
certain contracts; a€¢increased competition from other government contractors and market entrants seeking to take advantage of certain of the trends identified above,
and an industry trend towards consolidation, which may result in the emergence of companies that are better able to compete against us; a€¢cost cutting and efficiency
and effectiveness efforts by U.S. civilian agencies with a focus on increased use of performance measurement, a€ceprogram integritya€ efforts to reduce waste, fraud and
abuse in entitlement programs, and renewed focus on improving procurement practices for and interagency use of IT services, including through the use of cloud based
options and data center consolidation;a€¢restrictions by the U.S. government on the ability of federal agencies to use lead system integrators, in response to cost,



schedule, and performance problems with large defense acquisition programs where contractors were performing the lead system integrator role;a€¢increasingly
complex requirements and enforcement and reporting landscapes of the Department of Defense and the U.S. intelligence community, including cybersecurity, managing
federal health care cost growth, competition, and focus on reforming existing government regulation of various sectors of the economy, such as financial regulation and
healthcare; andéa€ ¢increasing small business regulations across the Department of Defense and civilian agency clients continue to gain traction, agencies are required to
meet high small business set aside targets, and large business prime contractors are required to subcontract in accordance with considerable small business participation
goals necessary for contract award.Sources of Revenue Substantially all of our revenue is derived from services provided under contracts and task orders with the U.S.
government, primarily by our client staff and, to a lesser extent, our subcontractors. Funding for our contracts and task orders is generally linked to trends in budgets
and spending across various U.S. government agencies and departments. We provide services under a large portfolio of contracts and contract vehicles to a broad client
base, and we believe that our diversified contract and client base lessens potential volatility in our business; however, a reduction in the amount of services that we are
contracted to provide to the U.S. government or any of our significant U.S. government clients could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations. In particular, the Department of Defense is one of our significant clients, and the BCA originally required nine automatic spending cuts (referred to as
a€cesequestrationa€) of $109A billion annually from 2013 to 2021, half of which was intended to come from defense programs, though less than $1 billion has been cut
for defense programs per year under the BCA. Mandatory sequestrations under the BCA were subsequently extended by the Bipartisan Budget Acts of 2013, 2015, 2018
and 2019, the Military Retired Pay Restoration Act, the CARES Act and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act. The extension of the mandatory sequestration applies
an 8.3% reduction in defense spending in each year from 2021 through 2031. This could result in a commensurate reduction in the amount of services that we are
contracted to provide to the Department of Defense and could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations, and given the uncertainty of when
and how these automatic reductions required by the BCA may return and/or be applied, we are unable to predict the nature or magnitude of the potential adverse
effect.Contract TypesWe generate revenue under the following three basic types of contracts:27 Table of ContentsA A A A &€¢Cost-Reimbursable Contracts. Cost-
reimbursable contracts provide for the payment of allowable costs incurred during performance of the contract, up to a ceiling based on the amount that has been
funded, plus a fixed fee or award fee. As we increase or decrease our spending on allowable costs, our revenue generated on cost-reimbursable contracts will increase, up
to the ceiling and funded amounts, or decrease, respectively. We generate revenue under two general types of cost-reimbursable contracts: cost-plus-fixed-fee and cost-
plus-award-fee, both of which reimburse allowable costs and provide for a fee. The fee under each type of cost-reimbursable contract is generally payable upon
completion of services in accordance with the terms of the contract. Cost-plus-fixed-fee contracts offer no opportunity for payment beyond the fixed fee. Cost-plus-award-
fee contracts also provide for an award fee that varies within specified limits based upon the clienta€™s assessment of our performance against a predetermined set of
criteria, such as targets for factors like cost, quality, schedule, and performance.&€¢Time-and-Materials Contracts. Under contracts in this category, we are paid a fixed
hourly rate for each direct labor hour expended, and we are reimbursed for billable material costs and billable out-of-pocket expenses inclusive of allocable indirect costs.
We assume the financial risk on time-and-materials contracts because our costs of performance may exceed negotiated hourly rates. To the extent our actual direct labor,
including allocated indirect costs, and associated billable expenses decrease or increase in relation to the fixed hourly billing rates provided in the contract, we will
generate more or less profit, respectively, or could incur a loss.a€¢Fixed-Price Contracts. Under a fixed-price contract, we agree to perform the specified work for a
predetermined price. To the extent our actual direct and allocated indirect costs decrease or increase from the estimates upon which the price was negotiated, we will
generate more or less profit, respectively, or could incur a loss. Some fixed-price contracts have a performance-based component, pursuant to which we can earn
incentive payments or incur financial penalties based on our performance. Fixed-price level of effort contracts require us to provide a specified level of effort (i.e., labor
hours), over a stated period of time, for a fixed price.The amount of risk and potential reward varies under each type of contract. Under cost-reimbursable contracts,
there is limited financial risk, because we are reimbursed for all allowable costs up to a ceiling. However, profit margins on this type of contract tend to be lower than on
time-and-materials and fixed-price contracts. Under time-and-materials contracts, we are reimbursed for the hours worked using the predetermined hourly rates for each
labor category. In addition, we are typically reimbursed for other contract direct costs and expenses at cost. We assume financial risk on time-and-materials contracts
because our labor costs may exceed the negotiated billing rates. Profit margins on well-managed time-and-materials contracts tend to be higher than profit margins on
cost-reimbursable contracts as long as we are able to staff those contracts with people who have an appropriate skill set. Under fixed-price contracts, we are required to
deliver the objectives under the contract for a predetermined price. Compared to time-and-materials and cost-reimbursable contracts, fixed-price contracts generally
offer higher profit margin opportunities because we receive the full benefit of any cost savings but generally involve greater financial risk because we bear the impact of
any cost overruns. In the aggregate, the contract type mix in our revenue for any given period will affect that period's profitability. Changes in contract type as a result of
re-competes and new business could influence the percentage/mix in unanticipated ways.The table below presents the percentage of total revenue for each type of
contract as of the respective periods presented:A Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 2024202320242023Cost-
reimbursable57%55%57%55%Time-and-materials23%24%23%24%Fixed-price20%21%20%21%Contract Diversity and Revenue MixWe provide services to our clients
through a large number of single award contracts, contract vehicles, and multiple award contract vehicles. Most of our revenue is generated under indefinite
delivery/indefinite quantity, or IDIQ, contract vehicles, which include multiple award government wide acquisition contract vehicles, or GWACs, and General Services
Administration Multiple Award Schedule Contracts, or GSA schedules, and certain single award contracts. GWACs and GSA schedules are available to all U.S.
government agencies. Any number of contractors typically competes under multiple award IDIQ contract vehicles for task orders to provide particular services, and we
earn revenue under these contract vehicles only to the extent that we are successful in the bidding process for task orders.28 Table of ContentsA A A A We generate
revenue under our contracts and task orders through our provision of services as both a prime contractor and subcontractor, as well as from the provision of services by
subcontractors under contracts and task orders for which we act as the prime contractor. The mix of these types of revenue affects our operating margin. Substantially
all of our operating margin is derived from direct client staff labor, as the portion of our operating margin derived from fees we earn on services provided by our
subcontractors is not significant. We view growth in direct client staff labor as the primary driver of earnings growth. Direct client staff labor growth is driven by client
staff headcount growth, after attrition, and total backlog growth.Our PeopleRevenue from our contracts is derived from services delivered by client staff and, to a lesser
extent, from our subcontractors. Our ability to hire, retain, and deploy talent with skills appropriately aligned with client needs is critical to our ability to grow our
revenue. We continuously evaluate whether our talent base is properly sized and appropriately compensated, and contains an optimal mix of skills to be cost competitive
and meet the rapidly evolving needs of our clients. We seek to achieve that result through recruitment and management of capacity and compensation. As of

DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, we employed approximately 35,900 and 33,800 people, respectively, of which approximately 32,700 and 30,900, respectively, were client
staff. Contract BacklogWe define backlog to include the following three components:a€¢Funded Backlog. Funded backlog represents the revenue value of orders for
services under existing contracts for which funding is appropriated or otherwise authorized less revenue previously recognized on these contracts.a€¢Unfunded Backlog.
Unfunded backlog represents the revenue value of orders (including optional orders) for services under existing contracts for which funding has not been appropriated or
otherwise authorized.a€¢Priced Options. Priced contract options represent 100% of the revenue value of all future contract option periods under existing contracts that
may be exercised at our clientsa€™ option and for which funding has not been appropriated or otherwise authorized.Our backlog does not include contracts that have
been awarded but are currently under protest and also does not include any task orders under IDIQ contracts, except to the extent that task orders have been awarded to
us under those contracts.The following table summarizes the value of our contract backlog as of the respective periods presented:A December 31,2024December
31,2023A (In millions)Backlog (1):Funded$5,330A $5,246A Unfunded9,340A 9,195A Priced options24,743A 19,880A Total backlog$39,413A $34,321A (1) Backlog
presented includes backlog acquired from the Companya€™s acquisition of PGSC during the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024. Total backlog acquired from PGSC
was approximately $230.5 million at the date of acquisition.Our total backlog consists of remaining performance obligations, certain orders under contracts for which the
period of performance has expired, and unexercised option period and other unexercised optional orders. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the Company
had $9.5 billion and $8.7 billion of remaining performance obligations, respectively. We expect to recognize approximately 70% of the remaining performance obligations
as of DecemberA 31, 2024 as revenue over the next 12 months, and approximately 80% over the next 24 months. The remainder is expected to be recognized thereafter.
However, given the uncertainties discussed below, as well as the risks described in a€celtem 1A. Risk Factorsa€ of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended MarchA 31, 2024, we can give no assurance that we will be able to convert our backlog into revenue in any particular period, if at all. Our backlog includes orders
under contracts that in some cases extend for several years. The U.S. Congress generally appropriates funds for our clients on a yearly basis, even though their contracts
with us may call for performance that is expected to take a number of years to complete. As a result, contracts typically are only partially funded at any point during their
term and all or some of the work to be performed under the contracts may remain unfunded unless and until the U.S. Congress makes subsequent appropriations and the
procuring agency allocates funding to the contract.29 Table of ContentsA A A A We view growth in total backlog and client staff headcount as the two key measures of
our potential business growth. Growing and deploying client staff is the primary means by which we are able to achieve profitable revenue growth. To the extent that we
are able to hire additional client staff and deploy them against funded backlog, we generally recognize increased revenue. Total backlog increased by 14.8% from
DecemberA 31, 2023 to DecemberA 31, 2024. Additions to funded backlog during the twelve months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023 totaled $11.9 billion and $11.0
billion, respectively, as a result of the conversion of unfunded backlog to funded backlog, the award of new contracts and task orders under which funding was
appropriated, and the exercise and subsequent funding of priced options. We report internally on our backlog on a monthly basis and review backlog upon occurrence of
certain events to determine if any adjustments are necessary.We cannot predict with any certainty the portion of our backlog that we expect to recognize as revenue in
any future period and we cannot guarantee that we will recognize any revenue from our backlog. The primary risks that could affect our ability to recognize such revenue
on a timely basis or at all are: program schedule changes, contract modifications, and our ability to assimilate and deploy new client staff against funded backlog; cost-
cutting initiatives and other efforts to reduce U.S. government spending, which could reduce or delay funding for orders for services; and delayed funding of our
contracts due to delays in the completion of the U.S. government's budgeting process and the use of continuing resolutions by the U.S. government to fund its operations.
The amount of our funded backlog is also subject to change, due to, among other factors: changes in congressional appropriations that reflect changes in U.S.
government policies or priorities resulting from various military, political, economic, or international developments; changes in the use of U.S. government contracting
vehicles, and the provisions therein used to procure our services and adjustments to the scope of services, or cancellation of contracts, by the U.S. government at any
time. In our recent experience, none of the following additional risks have had a material negative effect on our ability to realize revenue from our funded backlog: the
unilateral right of the U.S. government to cancel multi-year contracts and related orders or to terminate existing contracts for convenience or default; in the case of
unfunded backlog, the potential that funding will not be made available; and, in the case of priced options, the risk that our clients will not exercise their options.In
addition, contract backlog includes orders under contracts for which the period of performance has expired, and we may not recognize revenue on the funded backlog
that includes such orders due to, among other reasons, the tardy submission of invoices by our subcontractors and the expiration of the relevant appropriated funding in
accordance with a predetermined expiration date such as the end of the U.S. government's fiscal year. The value that was not recognized as revenue due to the expiration
of a contract&€™s period of performance did not exceed 5% of total backlog as of DecemberA 31, 2024 or any of the preceding three fiscal quarters. We expect to
recognize revenue from a substantial portion of funded backlog as of DecemberA 31, 2024 within the next twelve months. However, given the uncertainties discussed
above, as well as the risks described in &€cePart I, ItemA 1A. Risk Factors,a€ of our fiscal 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K, we can give no assurance that we will be
able to convert our backlog into revenue in any particular period, if at all. Government Audit Impact on Operating IncomeAs noted in the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended MarchA 31, 2024, in the ordinary course of business, agencies of the U.S. government for which the Company is engaged as a prime
contractor or a subcontractor, including the Defense Contract Audit Agency, audit the Companya€™s claimed costs and conduct inquiries and investigations of our
business practices with respect to government contracts. Such audits may result in, and have historically resulted in, the Companya€™s inability to retain certain claimed
costs, including executive and employee compensation, due to differing views of the allowability and reasonableness of such costs. Following the settlement of the civil
and criminal investigation of the Company by the U.S. Department of Justice (4€0eDQJa€) previously disclosed in Note 20, 4€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the



Companya€™s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended MarchA 31, 2024, audits for years subsequent to the Companya€™s fiscal year 2011 have resumed
and remain subject to final resolution. As discussed in Note 15, 4€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company
recognized a reserve for estimated adjustments to historical claimed costs in respect of the years subsequent to fiscal 2011. As audits of the periods subsequent to 2011
are completed, our estimates of adjustment to claimed costs for these periods could change. Any such change could materially impact our reported revenue, operating
income, net income and basic and diluted earnings per common share.Operating Costs and ExpensesCosts associated with compensation and related expenses for our
people are the most significant component of our operating costs and expenses. The principal factors that affect our costs are additional people as we grow our business
and are awarded new contracts, task orders, and additional work under our existing contracts, and the hiring of people with specific skill sets and security clearances as
required by our additional work. 30 Table of ContentsA A A A Our most significant operating costs and expenses are described below.a€¢Cost of Revenue. Cost of
revenue includes direct labor, related employee benefits, and overhead. Overhead consists of indirect costs, including indirect labor relating to infrastructure,
management and administration, and other expenses.a€¢Billable Expenses. Billable expenses include direct subcontractor expenses, travel expenses, and other expenses
incurred to perform on contracts.a€¢General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses include indirect labor of executive management and
corporate administrative functions, marketing and bid and proposal costs, legal costs, and other discretionary spending.a4€¢Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation
and amortization includes the depreciation of computers, leasehold improvements, furniture and other equipment, and the amortization of internally developed software,
as well as third-party software that we use internally, and of identifiable long-lived intangible assets over their estimated useful lives.SeasonalityThe U.S. government's
fiscal year ends on September 30 of each year. While not certain, it is not uncommon for U.S. government agencies to award extra tasks or complete other contract
actions in the weeks before the end of its fiscal year in order to avoid the loss of unexpended fiscal year funds. In addition, we also have historically experienced higher
bid and proposal costs in the months leading up to the U.S. government's fiscal year end as we pursue new contract opportunities being awarded shortly after the U.S.
government fiscal year end as new opportunities are expected to have funding appropriated in the U.S. government's subsequent fiscal year. We may continue to
experience this seasonality in future periods, and our future periods may be affected by it. While not certain, changes in the government's funding and spending patterns
have altered historical seasonality trends, supporting our approach to managing the business on an annual basis.Seasonality is just one of a number of factors, many of
which are outside of our control, which may affect our results in any period. See a€cePart I, ItemA 1A. Risk Factors,a€ of our fiscal 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-
K.Critical Accounting Estimates and PoliciesOur critical accounting estimates and policies are disclosed in the Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies section in Part
11, 4€celtem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

MarchA 31, 2024. Other than the change in estimate that resulted in a reduction to our provision for claimed costs during the second quarter of fiscal 2025, there were
no other material changes to our critical accounting policies, estimates or judgments that occurred during the periods covered by this report. See Note 15,
d€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information related to the aforementioned change in
estimate.31 Table of ContentsA A A A Results of Operations The following table sets forth items from our condensed consolidated statements of operations for the nine
months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023:A Three Months EndedDecember 31,Nine Months EndedDecember 31,A 2024202320242023A (Unaudited)
(Unaudited)Percent(Unaudited)(Unaudited)PercentA (In thousands)Change(In

thousands)ChangeRevenue$2,917,190A $2,569,801A 13.5A %$9,005,373A $7,890,569A 14.1A %Operating costs and expenses:Cost of

revenuel,305,612A 1,180,961A lO.GA %4,Q39,12§A 3,665,589A 10.2A %Billable expenses938,534A 799,896A 17.3A %2,851,5§7A 2,436,988A }7.0A %General and
administrative expenses341,629A 300,273A 13.8A %896,335A 915,160A (2.1)%Depreciation and amortization40,156A 41,113A (2.3)%123,341A 123,867A (0.4)%Total
operating costs and expenses2,625,931A 2,322,243A 13.1A %7,910,341A 7,141,604A 10.8A %Operating R

income291,259A 247,558A 17.7A %1,095,032A 748,965A 46.2A %Interest expense(45,629)(46,582)(2.0)%(138,605)(126,812)9.3A %Other income,

net2,766A 6,408A (56.8)%19,682A 11,888A 65.6A %Income before income taxes248,396A 207,384A 19.8A %976,109A 634,041A 54.0A %Income tax

expense61,446A 61,740A (0.5)%233,814A 156,291A 49.6A %Net income$186,950A $145,644A 28.4A %$742,295A $477,750A 55.4A %RevenueRevenue increased 13.5%
to $2.9 billion, and 14.1% to $9.0 billion, respectively for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 as compared to the prior year period. The increase was
primarily driven by strong demand for our services and solutions as well as continued headcount growth and higher billable expenses. In addition, revenue was positively
impacted by $121.7A million representing the reduction to our provision for claimed costs recorded during the second quarter of fiscal 2025 (as compared to

$18.3A million in the second quarter of fiscal 2024). See Note 15, a€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the condensed consolidated financial statements for further
information. Total headcount as of DecemberA 31, 2024 increased by approximately 2,100 as compared to DecemberA 31, 2023.Cost of RevenueCost of revenue as a
percentage of revenue was 44.8% and 46.0% for the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and 44.9% and 46.5% for the nine months ended
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Cost of revenue increased 10.6% and 10.2% for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, respectively, as
compared to the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023. The increases were primarily due to increases in salaries and salary-related benefits of $142.1
million and $426.6 million, respectively, driven by increased headcount and salary increases, partially offset by decreases in incentive and stock based compensation of
$14.9 million and $19.9 million, and other business expenses and professional fees of $4.2 million and $34.1 million, respectively, as compared to the prior year.Billable
ExpensesBillable expenses as a percentage of revenue were 32.2% and 31.1% for the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and 31.7% and
30.9% for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Billable expenses increased 17.3% and 17.0% for the three and nine months ended
DecemberA 31, 2024, respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023. The increases were primarily attributable to increases in the
use of subcontractors driven by client demand and timing of client needs, as well as increases in expenses from contracts requiring the Company to incur other direct
expenses and travel on behalf of clients as compared to the prior year.General and Administrative ExpensesGeneral and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenue were 11.7% for both the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and 10.0% and 11.6% for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively. General and administrative expenses increased 13.8% and decreased 2.1% for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024,
respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023.32 Table of ContentsA A A A General and administrative expenses increased in the
third quarter as compared to the prior year primarily due to increases in salary and salary related benefits of $22.3 million and other business expenses of $10.8 million.
The year to date period was impacted by $115.3A million in insurance recoveries from claims related to the Companya€™s fiscal 2024 settlement as described in Note 20,
a€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to the consolidated financial statements contained within the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024, as well as a $27.5 million reserve from fiscal 2024 associated with the U.S. Department of Justice's investigation of the Company, not present in the current year.
These decreases were partially offset by increases in salary and salary related benefits of $63.4 million, increases in other business expenses and professional fees of
$38.5 million.Depreciation and AmortizationDepreciation and amortization expense decreased 2.3% and 0.4% for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024,
respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, primarily driven by leasehold improvement amortization.Interest Expense Interest
expense decreased 2.0% and increased 9.3% for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, respectively, as compared to the three and nine months ended
DecemberA 31, 2023. A decrease in interest rates year over year contributed to the change. However, an increase in bond interest expense of $13.1A million year over
year related to the $650.0 million Senior Notes due 2033, issued by the Company in August of fiscal 2024, drove the increase in expense for the year to date period.Other
Income, net Other income (expense), net decreased to $2.8 million for the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 from $6.4 million for the three months ended
DecemberA 31, 2023, and increased to $19.7 million for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 from $11.9 million for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023.
The decline in other income, net for the quarter to date period was primarily driven by a decline in interest income driven by a lower average cash balance and lower
interest rates.The increases in other income, net for the year to date period were primarily driven by an increase of $11.2A million in the fair value of the Companya€™s
investments reflected in the second quarter of fiscal 2025.Income Tax Expenselncome tax expense decreased to $61.4 million for the three months ended DecemberA 31,
2024 from $61.7 million for the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, a decrease of 0.5%, and increased to $233.8 million for the nine months ended DecemberA 31,
2024 from $156.3A million for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2023, an increase of 49.6%. The quarterly effective tax rate decreased to 24.7% from 29.8% year
over year. The increase in income tax expense for the year to date period was driven by reversals in the prior year period related to indirect effects of underlying prior
period uncertain tax positions, not present in the current year.Liquidity and Capital ResourcesAs of DecemberA 31, 2024, our total liquidity was $1.5 billion, consisting of
$453.5 million of cash and cash equivalents and $998.6 million available under the Revolving Credit Facility. In the opinion of management, we will be able to meet our
liquidity and cash needs through a combination of cash flows from operating activities, available cash balances, and available borrowing under the Revolving Credit
Facility. If these resources need to be augmented, additional cash requirements would likely be financed through the issuance of debt or equity securities.The following
table presents selected financial information as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024 and for the first nine months of fiscal 2025 and 2024:A December
31,2024March 31,2024A (Unaudited)A (In thousands)Cash and cash equivalents$453,539A $554,257A Total debt$3,373,715A $3,411,816A 33 Table of ContentsA A A A
Nine Months EndedDecember 31,20242023(Unaudited)(Unaudited)(In thousands)Net cash provided by operating activities$789,991A $115,068A Net cash used in
investing activities(183,765)(68,254)Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities(706,944)150,137A Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents$(100,718)$196,951A From time to time, we evaluate alternative uses for excess cash resources once our operating cash flow and required debt servicing
needs have been met. Some of the possible uses of our remaining excess cash at any point in time may include funding strategic acquisitions, further investment in our
business and returning value to shareholders through share repurchases, quarterly dividends, and special dividends.Historically, we have been able to generate sufficient
cash to fund our operations, mandatory debt and interest payments, capital expenditures, and discretionary funding needs. However, due to fluctuations in cash flows,
including as a result of the trends and developments described above under a€oea€”Factors and Trends Affecting Our Results of Operationsa€ relating to U.S.
government shutdowns, U.S. government cost-cutting, reductions or delays in the U.S. government appropriations and spending process and other budgetary matters, it
may be necessary from time-to-time in the future to borrow under our Credit Agreement to meet cash demands. While the timing and financial magnitude of these
possible actions are currently indeterminable, we expect to be able to manage and adjust our capital structure to meet our liquidity needs. Our expected liquidity and
capital structure may also be impacted by discretionary investments and acquisitions that we could pursue. We anticipate that cash provided by operating activities,
existing cash and cash equivalents, and borrowing capacity under our Revolving Credit Facility will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements for the next
twelve months, which primarily include: &€¢operating expenses, including salaries;a€¢working capital requirements to fund both organic and inorganic growth of our
business;a€¢capital expenditures which primarily relate to the purchase of computers, business systems, furniture and leasehold improvements to support our
operations;a€¢the ongoing maintenance around all financial management systems;a€¢commitments and other discretionary investments;a€¢debt service requirements
for borrowings under our Credit Agreement and interest payments for the Senior Notes due 2028, Senior Notes due 2029 and Senior Notes due 2033; anda€¢cash taxes
to be paid.Our ability to fund our operating needs depends, in part, on our ability to generate positive cash flows from operations or, if necessary, raise cash in the capital
markets. In addition, from time to time we evaluate conditions to opportunistically access the financing markets to secure additional debt capital resources and improve
the terms of our indebtedness.On June 7, 2024, the Company completed the acquisition of PAR Government Systems Corporation (4€0ePGSCa€), a wholly owned
subsidiary of PAR Technology Corporation, for approximately $98.7 million, net of post-closing adjustments and incurred transaction costs as part of the acquisition. See
Note 5, &€ceAcquisition, Goodwill and Intangible Assets,a€ to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information related to the acquisition of
PGSC.Cash FlowsCash received from clients, either from the payment of invoices for work performed or for advances in excess of costs incurred, is our primary source of
cash. We generally do not begin work on contracts until funding is appropriated by the client. Billing timetables and payment terms on our contracts vary based on a
number of factors, including whether the contract type is cost-reimbursable, time-and-materials, or fixed-price. We generally bill and collect cash more frequently under
cost-reimbursable and time-and-materials contracts, as we are authorized to bill as the costs are incurred or work is performed. In contrast, we may be limited to bill
certain fixed-price contracts only when specified milestones, including deliveries, are achieved. In addition, a number of our contracts may provide for performance-based
payments, which allow us to bill and collect cash prior to completing the work.34 Table of ContentsA A A A Accounts receivable is the principal component of our



working capital and is generally driven by revenue growth with other short-term fluctuations related to the payment practices of our clients. Our accounts receivable
reflects amounts billed to our clients as of each balance sheet date. Our clients generally pay our invoices within 30 days of the invoice date, although we experience a
longer billing and collection cycle with our global commercial customers. At any month-end, we also include in accounts receivable the revenue that was recognized in
the preceding month, which is generally billed early in the following month. Finally, we include in accounts receivable amounts related to revenue accrued in excess of
amounts billed, primarily on our fixed-price and cost-reimbursable-plus-award-fee contracts. The total amount of our accounts receivable can vary significantly over time,
but is generally sensitive to revenue levels and customer mix. Operating Cash FlowNet cash provided by operations is primarily affected by the overall profitability of our
contracts, our ability to invoice and collect cash from clients in a timely manner, our ability to manage our vendor payments and the timing of cash paid for income taxes.
Continued uncertainty in global economic conditions, including any potential impact of the U.S. governmenta€™s failure to raise the debt ceiling, may also affect our
business as customers and suppliers may decide to downsize, defer, or cancel contracts, which could negatively affect our operating cash flows. Net cash provided by
operations was $790.0 million for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 compared to $115.1 million of net cash used in operations in the prior year period. Net
cash provided by operating activities was primarily driven by overall revenue growth. In addition, fiscal 2024 reflects a $377.5 million outflow related to the
Companya€™s fiscal 2024 settlement as described in Note 20, &4€ceCommitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial statements contained within the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, whereas fiscal 2025 reflects $115.3A million in insurance recoveries from claims related to that
settlement.Beginning in fiscal 2023, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 eliminated the option to deduct research and development expenditures immediately in the year
incurred and requires taxpayers to amortize such expenditures over five years for U.S. based research and development. This provision negatively impacted our fiscal
2024 cash from operations, but had an offsetting impact on the deferred tax asset. The Company expects a similar impact in fiscal 2025, although the impact to cash and
deferred taxes is expected to be smaller than in fiscal 2024. Prospectively, the future impact of this provision will depend on if and when this provision is deferred,
modified, or repealed by Congress, including if retroactively, any guidance issued by the Treasury Department regarding the identification of appropriate costs for
capitalization, and the amount of future research and development expenses paid or incurred (among other factors). While the largest impact was to fiscal 2023 cash
from operations, the impact will continue over the five year amortization period, but will decrease over the period and is expected to be less significant in year
six.Investing Cash FlowNet cash used in investing activities was $183.8 million in the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 compared to $68.3 million in the prior year
period. The increase in investing cash used over the prior year was primarily due to the Company's acquisition of PGSC.Financing Cash FlowNet cash used in financing
activities was $706.9 million in the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $150.1 million in the prior year
period. The increase in financing cash used year over year was primarily due to net proceeds of $636.2A million associated with the Companya€™s issuance of its 5.95%
Senior Notes due 2033 in the prior year, not present this year, as well as an increase of $193.5 million in share repurchases year over year.Dividends and Share
RepurchasesOn JanuaryA 31, 2025, the Company announced a regular quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.55 per share. The quarterly dividend is payable on
MarchA 4, 2025 to stockholders of record on FebruaryA 14, 2025.During the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, quarterly cash dividends of $0.51 and
$1.53 per share, respectively, were declared and paid totaling $65.5 million and $198.4 million, respectively. During the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31,
2023, quarterly cash dividends of $0.47 and $1.41 per share, respectively, were declared and paid totaling $61.7A million and $186.8A million, respectively.On December
12, 2011, the Board of Directors initially approved a share repurchase program, which was subsequently increased from time to time. On JanuaryA 28, 2025 the Board of
Directors increased the program by $500.0 million to $3,585.0 million, resulting in a remaining availability of $994.7 million for share repurchases under the program as
of such date. The Company may repurchase shares pursuant to the program by means of open market repurchases, directly negotiated repurchases or through agents
acting pursuant to negotiated repurchase agreements. During the first nine months of fiscal 2025, the Company purchased 3.0 million shares of the Company's Class A
Common Stock for an aggregate of $453.5 million. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the Company had approximately $554.7 million remaining under the repurchase program.
35 Table of ContentsA A A A Any determination to pursue one or more of the above alternative uses for excess cash is subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors,
and will depend upon various factors, including our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity requirements, restrictions that may be imposed by applicable law,
our contracts, and our Credit Agreement as amended and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.Indebtedness Booz Allen Hamilton Inc. (d4€ceBooz Allen
Hamilton&€), Booz Allen Hamilton Investor Corporation (&€celnvestora€), and certain wholly owned subsidiaries of Booz Allen Hamilton are parties to a Credit Agreement
dated as of July 31, 2012, as amended (the 4€ceCredit Agreementa€), with certain institutional lenders and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Collateral
Agent and Issuing Lender. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the Credit Agreement provided Booz Allen Hamilton with a $1,546.9 million Term Loan A (4€ceTerm Loan Aa€) and
a $1.0 billion revolving credit facility (the &€ceRevolving Credit Facilitya€), with a sub-limit for letters of credit of $200.0A million. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the
maturity date of Term Loan A and the Revolving Commitments is SeptemberA 7, 2027. Voluntary prepayments of Term Loan A and the Revolving Loans are permitted at
any time, in minimum principal amounts, without premium or penalty. Booz Allen Hamiltona€™s obligations and the guarantorsa€™ guarantees under the Credit
Agreement were secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of the assets (including capital stock of subsidiaries) of Booz Allen Hamilton, Investor and the
subsidiary guarantors, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Credit Agreement and related documentation; such security was released in connection with Booz
Allen Hamilton obtaining investment grade ratings from both Moody's and S&P. On September 7, 2022 (the &€eNinth Amendment Effective Datea€), the previously
outstanding Term Loan B loans under the Credit Agreement were prepaid in full.On July 27, 2023 (the &€ceTenth Amendment Effective Date&€), Booz Allen Hamilton
entered into a Tenth Amendment (the &€ceAmendmenta€) to the Credit Agreement (as amended prior to the Tenth Amendment Effective Date, the a&€ceExisting Credit
Agreementé€ and, as amended by the Amendment, the &4€ceAmended Credit Agreementa€) with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent (in such capacity, the
d€ceAdministrative Agenta€), and the lenders and other financial institutions party thereto, in order to make permanent certain changes to the Existing Credit Agreement
in connection with Booz Allen Hamilton obtaining investment grade ratings from both Moody's and S&P and prepaying the Term Loan B loans in full and to make certain
additional changes in connection therewith, including, among other things, (i) removing the requirements for the obligations under the Amended Credit Agreement to be
secured, (ii) removing the requirement for any subsidiary or other affiliate of Booz Allen Hamilton (other than the Company) to provide any guarantee of the obligations
under the Amended Credit Agreement and (iii) removing or modifying certain covenants applicable to Booz Allen Hamilton. Pursuant to the Amendment, all guarantees in
respect of the Existing Credit Agreement have been released. The Amendment did not impact any of the terms of the Credit Agreement related to amortization or
payments.On the Tenth Amendment Effective Date in connection with the Amendment, the Company entered into a Guarantee Agreement (the &€ceGuarantee
Agreementé€) in favor of the Administrative Agent, pursuant to which the Company guarantees on an unsecured basis the obligations of Booz Allen Hamilton under the
Amended Credit Agreement subject to certain conditions. Pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement Booz Allen Hamilton has the option, though not any obligation, to
join one or more of its domestic subsidiaries as a guarantor under the Guarantee Agreement.Term Loan A amortizes in consecutive quarterly installments in an amount
equal to (i) on the last business day of each full fiscal quarter that begins after the Ninth Amendment Effective Date but on or before the two year anniversary of the
Ninth Amendment Effective Date, 0.625% of the stated principal amount of Term Loan A and (ii) on the last business day of each full fiscal quarter that begins after the
two year anniversary of the Ninth Amendment Effective Date but before the five year anniversary of the Ninth Amendment Effective Date, 1.25% of the stated principal
amount of Term Loan A. The remaining balance of Term Loan A will be payable upon maturity.The rate at which Term Loan A and the Revolving Loans bear interest will
be based either on Term SOFR (subject to a 0.10% adjustment and a floor of zero) for the applicable interest period or a base rate (equal to the highest of (i) the
administrative agentd€™ s prime corporate rate, (ii) the overnight federal funds rate plus 0.50% and (iii) three-month Term SOFR (subject to a 0.10% adjustment and a
floor of zero) plus 1.00%), in each case plus an applicable margin, payable at the end of the applicable interest period and in any event at least quarterly. The applicable
margin for Term Loan A and the Revolving Loans ranges from 1.00% to 2.00% for Term SOFR loans and zero to 1.00% for base rate loans, in each case based on the
lower of (i) the applicable rate per annum determined pursuant to a consolidated total net leverage ratio grid and (ii) the applicable rate per annum determined pursuant
to a ratings grid. Unused Revolving Commitments are subject to a quarterly fee ranging from 0.10% to 0.35% based on the lower of (i) the applicable fee rate per annum
determined pursuant to a consolidated total net leverage ratio grid and (ii) the applicable fee rate per annum determined pursuant to a ratings grid. Booz Allen Hamilton
has also agreed to pay customary letter of credit and agency fees. The Company occasionally borrows under the Revolving Credit Facility for our working capital needs.
There were no borrowings during the third quarter of fiscal 2025 and as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively, there was no outstanding balance on
the Revolving Credit Facility.36 Table of ContentsA A A A Borrowings under Term Loan A, and if used, the Revolving Credit Facility, incur interest at a variable rate. As
of DecemberA 31, 2024, Booz Allen Hamilton had interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $550.0 million. These instruments hedge the variability of
cash outflows for interest payments on the Credit Agreement. The Company's objectives in using cash flow hedges are to reduce volatility due to interest rate movements
and to add stability to interest expense. See Note 9, &€ceDerivatives,a€ to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further information.The Credit Agreement
contains customary representations and warranties and customary affirmative and negative covenants. In connection with Booz Allen Hamilton obtaining investment
grade ratings from both Moody's and S&P, certain activities previously restricted by certain negative covenants are permitted subject to pro forma compliance with the
financial covenants and no events of default having occurred or are continuing. In addition, Booz Allen Hamilton is required to meet certain financial covenants at each
quarter end, specifically the consolidated net total leverage ratio. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, Booz Allen Hamilton was in compliance with all
financial covenants associated with its debt and debt-like instruments. As of DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, the Company was contingently liable under open
standby letters of credit and bank guarantees issued by our banks in favor of third parties that totaled $4.5 million and $4.4 million, respectively. These letters of credit
and bank guarantees primarily support insurance and bid and performance obligations. At DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively, approximately $1.4
million and $1.3 million of these instruments reduced the available borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. The remainder is guaranteed under a separate $7.5
million facility of which $4.5 million and $4.4 million was available to the Company at DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024, respectively.Senior NotesThe following
table summarizes the material terms of the Companya€™ s Senior Notes as of DecemberA 31, 2024:Indenture DatePrincipallnterest RateMaturity DateInterest
Payablelssuance CostsSenior Notes due 20338/4/2023$650,000A 5.950%8/4/2033February and August 4$12;400A Senior Notes due

20296/17/2021500,000A 4.000%7/1/2029]uly and January 16,500A Senior Notes due 20288/24/2020700,000A 3.875%9/1/2028March and September

19,200A Total$1,850,000A $28,100A Interest is payable semi-annually in cash in arrears, with the principal due at maturity. Issuance Costs were recorded as an offset
against the carrying value of respective debt and are being amortized to interest expense over the term of the respective debt. For further information on the Senior
Notes, including terms, conditions, restrictions and redemption options, see Note 10, &€ceDebt,a€ of the Companya€™s consolidated financial statements included in the
fiscal 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K.All Senior Notesa€™ indentures contain certain covenants, events of default and other customary provisions. In connection with
the Senior Notes obtaining investment grade ratings from Moody's and S&P, in January 2023, certain negative covenants in the indentures governing the Senior Notes
2028 and Senior Notes 2029 were suspended, and the related guarantees were released. The Senior Notes due 2033 are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an
unsecured and unsubordinated basis by Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation, pursuant to the relevant indenture. Summarized Financial InformationThe Senior
Notes due 2033 were issued by Booz Allen Hamilton pursuant to the Base Indenture, among Booz Allen Hamilton, the Company and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National
Association, as trustee, as supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture. The Senior Notes due 2033 are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsecured and
unsubordinated basis by the Company pursuant to the Indenture. The tables below present the summarized financial information as combined for the Company and Booz
Allen Hamilton as of MarchA 31, 2024 and as of and for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, after the elimination of intercompany transactions and balances
between the Company and Booz Allen Hamilton and excluding the subsidiaries of the Company that are not issuers or guarantors of the Senior Notes due 2033, including
earnings from and investments in these entities. The summarized financial information is provided in accordance with the reporting requirements of Rule 13-01 under
Regulation S-X and is not intended to present our financial position or results of operations in accordance with GAAP.37 Table of ContentsA A A A Summarized
Statements of Financial Condition(in thousands)December 31, 2024March 31, 2024Intercompany receivables from non-guarantor subsidiaries$1 1,816A $62,012A Total
other current assets$2,746,398A $2,618,239A Goodwill and intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization$1,501,049A $1,499,616A Total other non-current
assets$944,172A $853,623A Intercompany payables to non-guarantor subsidiaries$10,327A $13,408A Total other current liabilities$1,797,834A $1,641,369A Long-term



debt, net of current portion$3,291,215A $3,349,941A Total other non-current liabilities$488,158A $457,290A Summarized Statement of Operations(in thousands)Nine
Months Ended December 31, 2024Revenue$8,394, 800A Revenue from non-guarantor subsidiaries$465,267A Operating income$622, 102A Operating income from non-
guarantor subsidiaries$438,564A Net income$709,201A Net income attributable to the Obligor Group$709,201A Capital Structure and ResourcesOur stockholdersa€™
equity amounted to $1,209.9A million as of DecemberA 31, 2024, an increase of $163.3, compared to stockholdersa€™ equity of $1,046.6 million as of MarchA 31, 2024.
The increase was primarily due to net income of $742.3 million and stock-based compensation expense of $70.8 million during the nine months ended DecemberA 31,
2024, partially offset by $474.5 million in treasury stock resulting from the repurchase of shares of our Class A Common Stock, and $198.9 million in quarterly dividend
payments for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024.Capital ExpendituresSince we do not own any of our facilities, our capital expenditure requirements primarily
relate to the purchase of computers, management systems, furniture, and leasehold improvements to support our operations. Direct facility and equipment costs billed to
clients are not treated as capital expenses. Our capital expenditures for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023 were $73.4 million and $50.5 million,
respectively. The increase is primarily driven by an increase in leasehold improvements and secure space updates to our leased facilities in the current
period.Commitments and ContingenciesWe are subject to a number of reviews, investigations, claims, lawsuits, and other uncertainties related to our business. For a
discussion of these items, refer to Note 15, &€ceCommitments and Contingencies,a€ to our condensed consolidated financial statements.Special Note Regarding Forward
Looking StatementsCertain statements contained or incorporated in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or Quarterly Report, include forward-looking statements. In
some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as 4€cemay,a€ a€cewill,a€ d€mecould,a€ a€mshould,a€ a€ceforecasts,a€ d€mwexpects,a€
a€ceintends,a€ a€omeplans,a€ d€ceanticipates,a€ a€ceprojects,a€ a€meoutlook,a€ a€cebelieves,a€ a€oeestimates,a€ a€cepredicts,a€ a€cepotential,a€ a€cecontinue,a€
d€cepreliminary,a€ or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, we can give you no assurance these expectations will prove to have been correct. These forward-looking statements relate to future events or
our future financial performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance,
or achievements to differ materially from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.
These risks and other factors include: a€¢any issue that compromises our relationships with the U.S. government or damages our professional reputation, including
negative publicity concerning government contractors in general or us in particular;a€¢changes in U.S. government spending, including a continuation of efforts by the
U.S. government to decrease spending for management support service contracts, and mission priorities that shift expenditures away from agencies or programs that we
support, or as a result of U.S. administration transitions;38 Table of ContentsA A A A a€¢efforts by Congress and other U.S. government bodies to reduce U.S.
government spending and address budgetary constraints and the U.S. deficit, as well as associated uncertainty around the timing, extent, nature and effect of such
efforts;a€¢delayed long-term funding of our contracts, including uncertainty relating to funding the U.S. government and increasing the debt ceiling;4€¢U.S. government
shutdowns as a result of the failure by elected officials to fund the government; d€¢failure to comply with numerous laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the
Federal Acquisition Regulation (4€0eFAR4€), the False Claims Act, the Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement (4€eDFARS&€), and FAR Cost Accounting
Standards and Cost Principles;a€¢the effects of disease outbreaks, pandemics, or widespread health epidemics including disruptions to our workforce and the impact on
government spending and demand for our solutions;a€¢our ability to compete effectively in the competitive bidding process and delays or losses of contract awards
caused by competitors' protests of major contract awards received by us;a€¢variable purchasing patterns under U.S. government General Services Administration
Multiple Award schedule contracts, or General Services Administration (a€ceGSAa€) schedules, blanket purchase agreements, and indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity
(&€0eIDIQ4&f€) contracts;a€¢the loss of GSA schedules or our position as prime contractor on government-wide acquisition contract vehicles (a€ceGWACsa€);a€¢changes in
the mix of our contracts and our ability to accurately estimate or otherwise recover expenses, time, and resources for our contracts;a€¢changes in estimates used in
recognizing revenue;a€¢our ability to realize the full value of and replenish our backlog, generate revenue under certain of our contracts, and the timing of our receipt of
revenue under contracts included in backlog;a€¢internal system or service failures and security breaches, including, but not limited to, those resulting from external or
internal threats, including cyber attacks on our network and internal systems;a€¢risks related to the operations of financial management systems;a€ ¢an inability to
attract, train, or retain employees with the requisite skills and experience;a€¢an inability to timely hire, assimilate and effectively utilize our employees, ensure that
employees obtain and maintain necessary security clearances and/or effectively manage our cost structure;a€¢risks related to inflation that could impact the cost of doing
business and/or reduce customer buying power;a€¢the loss of members of senior management or failure to develop new leaders;a€¢misconduct or other improper
activities from our employees, subcontractors, or suppliers, including the improper access, use or release of our or our clientsd€™ sensitive or classified information;a€
¢increased competition from other companies in our industry;a€¢failure to maintain strong relationships with other contractors, or the failure of contractors with which
we have entered into a sub- or prime- contractor relationship to meet their obligations to us or our clients;a€¢inherent uncertainties and potential adverse developments
in legal or regulatory proceedings, including litigation, audits, reviews, and investigations, which may result in materially adverse judgments, settlements, withheld
payments, penalties, or other unfavorable outcomes including debarment, as well as disputes over the availability of insurance or indemnification;a€ ¢failure to comply
with special U.S. government laws and regulations relating to our international operations;a€¢risks associated with increased competition, new relationships, clients,
capabilities, and service offerings in our U.S. and international businesses;a€¢risks related to changes to our operating structure, capabilities, or strategy intended to
address client needs, grow our business or respond to market developments;a€¢the adoption by the U.S. government of new laws, rules, and regulations, such as those
relating to organizational conflicts of interest issues or limits;a€¢risks related to a possible recession and volatility or instability of the global financial system, including
the failures of financial institutions and the resulting impact on counterparties and business conditions generally;a€¢risks related to a deterioration of economic
conditions or weakening in credit or capital markets;39 Table of ContentsA A A A a€¢risks related to pending, completed and future acquisitions and dispositions,
including the ability to satisfy specified closing conditions for pending transactions, such as those related to receipt of regulatory approval or lack of regulatory
intervention, and to realize the expected benefits from completed acquisitions and dispositions;a€¢the incurrence of additional tax liabilities, including as a result of
changes in tax laws or management judgments involving complex tax matters;a€¢risks inherent in the government contracting environment;a€¢continued efforts to
change how the U.S. government reimburses compensation related costs and other expenses or otherwise limits such reimbursements, and an increased risk of
compensation being deemed unreasonable and unallowable or payments being withheld as a result of U.S. government audit, review, or investigation;a€¢increased
insourcing by various U.S. government agencies due to changes in the definition of &€ceinherently governmentala€ work, including proposals to limit contractor access to
sensitive or classified information and work assignments;a€¢the size of our addressable markets and the amount of U.S. government spending on private contractors;a€
¢risks related to our indebtedness and credit facilities which contain financial and operating covenants;a€¢the impact of changes in accounting rules and regulations, or
interpretations thereof, that may affect the way we recognize and report our financial results, including changes in accounting rules governing recognition of revenue; a€
¢the impact of ESG-related risks and climate change generally on our and our clients' businesses and operations; anda€¢other risks and factors listed under d€celtem 1A.
Risk Factorsa€ and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, as well as those listed under a€ceRisk Factorsa€ in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

MarchA 31, 2024.In light of these risks, uncertainties and other factors, the forward-looking statements might not prove to be accurate and you should not place undue
reliance upon them. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made and we undertake no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.ItemA 3.A A A A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market RiskThere have
been no material changes during the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the information disclosed in the Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk section in Part II, 4€celtem 7. Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended MarchA 31, 2024 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on MayA 24, 2024.ItemA 4.A A A A Controls and
ProceduresDisclosure Controls and ProceduresManagement, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange
Act, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of
the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.Changes in Internal Control Over Financial ReportingThere
have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the last
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.40 Table of ContentsA A A A PART
II. OTHER INFORMATIONA ItemA 1.A A A A Legal ProceedingsDisclosure concerning legal proceedings can be found in Part I, Item 1. 4€ceFinancial Statements, Notes
to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 15, Commitments and Contingenciesa€ under the caption, &€ceLitigation,a€ which is incorporated here
by this reference.IltemA 1A.A A A A Risk Factors There have been no material changes during the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the risk
factors disclosed in Part I, Item 1A, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended MarchA 31, 2024 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
MayA 24, 2024.1temA 2.A A A A Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of ProceedsRecent Sales of Unregistered SecuritiesNone.Issuer Purchases of Equity
SecuritiesThe following table shows the share repurchase activity for each of the three months in the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024:PeriodTotal Number of Shares
PurchasedAverage Price Paid per ShareTotal Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs Approximate Dollar Value of Shares that
May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs (1)October 2024155,039$161.25155,039$674,708November 2024361,598$165.93361,598$614,709December
2024402,584$149.04402,584$554,709Total919,221919,221(1) On December 12, 2011, the Board of Directors initially approved a share repurchase program, which was
subsequently increased from time to time. On JanuaryA 28, 2025, the Board of Directors increased the program by $500.0A million to $3,585.0A million, resulting in a
remaining availability of $994.7A million for share repurchases under the program as of such date. A special committee of the Board of Directors was appointed to
evaluate market conditions and other relevant factors and initiate repurchases under the program from time to time. The share repurchase program may be suspended,
modified or discontinued at any time at the Companya€™s discretion without prior notice. The above table does not factor in any increases to the share repurchase
program subsequent to DecemberA 31, 2024.ItemA 3.A A A A Defaults Upon Senior SecuritiesNone.A ItemA 4.A A A A Mine Safety DisclosuresNot

applicable.IltemA 5.A A A A Other InformationAppointment of Chief Accounting OfficerOn January 28, 2025, Dennis Metzfield, Vice President and Controller of the
Company, was promoted to Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer) of the Company, effective February 1, 2025.Mr. Metzfield, age 45, joined the Company
in November 2024 as Vice President and Controller. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Metzfield spent 7 years at Huntington Ingalls Industries (NYSE: HII), where he
most recently served as the Corporate Assistant Controller. Prior to joining Huntington Ingalls Industries, Mr. Metzfield served as a Senior Manager in Deloitted€™s
accounting advisory practice. Mr. Metzfield holds a B.A. in economics from Hampden-Sydney College and a Master of Accounting from William and Mary. There were no
material changes to Mr. Metzfielda€™ s compensation arrangements relating to this change. Mr. Metzfield has no family relationships with any of our directors or
executive officers. There are no relationships between the Company or its subsidiaries, on one hand, and Mr. Metzfield, on the other hand, that would require disclosure
pursuant to Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K, and there are no arrangements or understanding between Mr. Metzfield and any other person pursuant to which he was
appointed as Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer) of the Company.41 Table of ContentsA A A A In connection with and effective as of Mr.

Metzfielda€™ s appointment as Chief Accounting Officer, Matthew A. Calderone, the Companya€™ s Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, will no longer
serve as principal accounting officer. Mr. Calderone will continue to serve as principal financial officer.Disclosure of Trading Arrangementsltem 408(a) of Regulation S-K
requires the Company to disclose whether any director or officer of the Company has adopted or terminated (i) any trading arrangement that is intended to satisfy the
affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) (a 4€ceRule 10b5-1 trading arrangementé€); and/or (ii) any written trading arrangement that meets the requirements of
a a€cenon-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangementa€ as defined in Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K.During the quarter ended December 31, 2024, the following activity occurred
requiring disclosure under Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K:Kristine M. Anderson, our Chief Operating Officer, adopted a new Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement on October
31, 2024 that will terminate on November 7, 2025. Under the trading arrangement, up to an aggregate of 16,029 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of
options are available to be sold by the broker upon reaching pricing targets defined in the trading arrangement.Horacio D. Rozanski, our Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, adopted a new Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement on November 7, 2024 that will terminate on November 7, 2025. Under the trading arrangement, up to an



aggregate of 74,891 shares of common stock are available to be sold by the broker upon reaching pricing targets defined in the trading arrangement.Thomas Pfeifer, an
Executive Vice President and President of the Company's National Security sector, adopted a new Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement on December 2, 2024 that will
terminate on November 21, 2025. Under the trading arrangement, up to an aggregate of 16,090 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of options are
available to be sold by the broker upon reaching pricing targets defined in the trading arrangement.Richard Crowe, an Executive Vice President and President of the
Company's Civil sector, adopted a new Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement on December 16, 2024 that will terminate on December 5, 2025. Under the trading
arrangement, up to an aggregate of 6,666 shares of common stock are available to be sold by the broker upon reaching pricing targets defined in the trading
arrangement.IltemA 6.A A A A ExhibitsExhibitNumberDescription22List of Guarantors and Subsidiary Issuers of Guaranteed Securities (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 22 to the Companya€™s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 on Form 10-K (File No. 001-34972))31.1Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of
the Chief Executive Officer*31.2Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer*32.1Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-
14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350)*32.2Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by
Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350)*101The following materials from Booz Allen
Hamilton Holding Corporationa€™s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended DecerpherA 31, 2024 formatted in Inline XBRL (eXtensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at DecemberA 31, 2024 and MarchA 31, 2024; (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023; (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three and
nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023; (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023; and
(v) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.104Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL

document) *A A A A Filed electronically herewith.42 Table of ContentsA A A A SIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.Booz Allen Hamilton
Holding CorporationRegistrantDate: JanuaryA 31, 2025By:/s/ Matthew A. CalderoneMatthew A. CalderoneExecutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer(Principal
Financial Officer)43 DocumentExhibit 31.1CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OF THESECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDEDI, Horacio D. Rozanski, certify that:1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation.2.
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.3. Based on my knowledge, the
financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report.4. The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the
registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on
our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's Board of Directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and(b) Any fraud, whether or not
material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.A Date: JanuaryA 31,
2025By:/s/ Horacio D. RozanskiHoracio D. RozanskiPresident and Chief Executive Officer(Principal Executive Officer)DocumentExhibit 31.2CERTIFICATION OF THE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OF THESECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDEDI, Matthew A. Calderone, certify that:1. I
have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation.2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report.4. The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:(a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):(a) All significant deficiencies
and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.A Date: JanuaryA 31, 2025By:/s/ Matthew A. CalderoneMatthew A. CalderoneExecutive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)DocumentExhibit 32.1CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT
OF 2002(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)In connection with the report on Form 10-Q of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation (the 4€ceCompanya€) for the fiscal quarter
ended DecemberA 31, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the a€ceReporta€), the undersigned President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company certifies, to the best of his knowledge and belief pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionA 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectionA 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of SectionA 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.(2) The information contained in
the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.A Date: JanuaryA 31, 2025By:/s/ Horacio D.
RozanskiHoracio D. RozanskiPresident and Chief Executive Officer(Principal Executive Officer)A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or
other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement
required by Section 906, has been provided to Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation and will be retained by Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.DocumentExhibit 32.2CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY
ACT OF 2002(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)In connection with the report on Form 10-Q of Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation (the &€ceCompanya€) for the fiscal
quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the a€osReporta€) the undersigned Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer certifies, to the best of his knowledge and belief pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectionA 1350, as adopted pursuant to SectionA 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of SectionA 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.(2) The
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.A Date: JanuaryA 31,
2025By:/s/ Matthew A. CalderoneMatthew A. CalderoneExecutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)A signed original of this written
statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the
electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Booz Allen Hamilton Holding Corporation and will be retained by Booz Allen
Hamilton Holding Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




